
Please silence your cell phones. 

OPEN SESSION 

REGULAR OPEN MEETING OF THE THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 

Tuesday, January 21, 2020 - 9:30 a.m. 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room 24351 El Toro Road 

Laguna Woods, California

NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA

1. Call meeting to order / Establish Quorum – President Parsons

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Bhada

3. Acknowledge Media

4. Approval of Agenda

5. Approval of Minutes

a. December 17, 2019 – Regular Open Meeting

6. Report of the Chair

7. Third Mutual Board Director Candidate Appointment (Term Ending 2020)
Candidate Introduction, Candidate Statements, Candidate Interview, Vote by Secret
Ballot and Announcement of New Board Member. The Candidates are:
 Doug Gibson
 Gan Mukhopadhyay
 Susan Smallwood

8. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker) - At this time Members may address
the Board of Directors regarding items not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction
of this Board of Directors. There is a maximum time limit of three minutes per
speaker and a speaker may only address the Board once during this period.  The
Board reserves the right to limit the total amount of time allotted for the Open
Forum.

9. Responses to Open Forum Speakers

10. CEO/COO Report



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Regular Board Open Session Meeting 
January 21, 2020 
Page 2 of 5 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 

11. Consent Calendar - All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are
recommended for action by committees and will be enacted by the Board by one
motion. In the event that an item is removed from the Consent Calendar by
members of the Board, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and
action by the Board.

a. Architectural Control and Standards Committee Recommendations:

(1)  Recommend to Approve a Request to Retain Non-Standard Color on Two 
Exterior Entry Doors (3510-3G) 

(2) Recommend to Approve a Request to Retain Non-Standard Entry Door 
and Install Stacked Stone Veneer on Front Exterior Wall (5165) 

(3) Recommend to Approve a Request to Replace Planter with Wood
Frame/Stucco Bathroom Extension on Original Exclusive Use Common
Area (5589-A) 

b. Landscape Committee Recommendations:

(1) Ratify award of contract to West Coast Arborists, Inc. in the amount of
$503,121, which includes a ten percent contingency, to perform the tree
maintenance services. 

(2) Ratify award of contract to Mission Landscape, Inc. in the amount of 
$470,176 for slope landscape maintenance. 

(3)  Recommend to Approve Tree Removal Request—3086-C Via Serena N. 
(Graham) – one Shamel Ash – as it meets guidelines established in 
Resolution 03-11-149 

c. Finance Committee Recommendations:

(1) Recommendation to Approve a Resolution to Record Lien against
Member ID# 931-720-36 

d. Consistent with its statutory obligations the Board members individually
reviewed  Third Laguna Hills Mutual financials for the month of November
2019, and by this vote ratify that such review be confirmed in this month’s
Board Member Open Session Meeting minutes per Civil Code §5501.

12. Unfinished Business

a. Entertain a Motion to Adopt a Resolution to Approve a Species-Based Tree
Trimming Program  (DECEMBER initial notification—28-day notification for
Member comments and suggestions to conform to Civil Code §4360 has been
satisfied)

b. Entertain a Motion to Adopt a Resolution for Internal Dispute Policy
(DECEMBER initial notification:  28-day notification for Member comments and
suggestions to conform to Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied)



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Regular Board Open Session Meeting 
January 21, 2020 
Page 3 of 5 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 

13. New Business

a. Entertain a Motion to Approve a Transfer of $8,000,000 in Cash from Funds
held at Bank of America to the Discretionary Investment Account held and
Managed by SageView/Fidelity Investments

14. Committee Reports

a. Report of the Finance Committee / Financial Report – Director Parsons.  The
Committee met on January 7, 2020; next meeting  February 4, 2020, at 1:30
p.m. in the Board Room

(1)  Treasurer’s Report 
(2)  Third Finance Committee Report 
(3)  Resales/Leasing Reports 

b. Report of the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee – Director
Jarrett. The Committee met on December 3, 2019; next meeting January 27,
2020, at 9:30 a.m. in the Board Room

c. Report of the Communications Committee – Director McCary.  The
Committee met on October 9, 2019; next meeting TBA.

d. Report of the Maintenance and Construction Committee – Director Bhada.
The Committee met on January 6, 2020; next meeting March 2, 2020, at 1:30
p.m. in the Board Room.

(1) Report of the Parking and Golf Cart Task Force – President Parsons. 
The Task Force met on January 6, 2019; next meeting TBA.  

e. Report of the Landscape Committee – Director Jarrett.  The Committee met
on January 2, 2020; next meeting February 6, 2020, at 9:30 a.m. in the Board
Room.

f. Report of the Water Subcommittee – Director Jarrett.  The subcommittee met
on October 9, 2019; next meeting TBA.

g. Report of the Resident Policy and Compliance Committee – Director Jarrett. 
The Task Force met on January 15, 2020; next meeting TBA

h. Report of the Village Energy Task Force – Director Frankel.  The Task Force
met on January 10, 2020; next meeting TBA.

15. GRF Committee Highlights

a. Community Activities Committee – Director Bhada. The Committee met on
January 9, 2020; next meeting March 12, 2020, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board
Room.



 
 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Regular Board Open Session Meeting  
January 21, 2020 
Page 4 of 5 
 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 
 

b. Finance Committee – Director Parsons. The Committee met on December 
18, 2019; next meeting February 19, 2019, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room.  
 

c. Landscape Committee – Director Engdahl.  The Committee met on December 
4, 2019; next meeting February 12, 2020, at 1:30p.m. in the Board Room.   
 

d. Maintenance & Construction Committee – Director Frankel –   The Committee 
met on October 9, 2019; next meeting January 13, 2020, Special Meeting at 
2:00 p.m. & February 12, 2020, Regular Meeting at 9:30 a.m. in the Board 
Room 
 

(1) PAC Renovation Ad Hoc Committee – Director Pearlstone. The 
Committee met on December 12, 2019. 

 

e. Media and Communications Committee – Director McCary.  The Committee 
met on December 16, 2019; next meeting January 22, 2020, at 9:30 a.m. in 
the Board Room 
 

f. Mobility and Vehicles Committee – Director Frankel – The Committee met on 
November 27, 2019; next meeting February 5, 2020, at 1:30 p.m. in the 
Board Room 
 

g. Security and Community Access Committee – Director Mutchnick. The 
Committee met on January 20, 2020; next meeting February 24, 2020, at 
1:30 p.m. in the Board Room 
 

(1) Disaster Preparedness Task Force – Director McCary.  The Task 
Force  met on November 26, 2019; next meeting January 28, 2020, 
9:30 a.m. in the Board Room 

 

h. Report of the Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings – Director Frankel.  The 
hearings were held on January 15, 2019; next hearings February 19, 2020, at 
9:00 a.m. in the Board Room and 1:00 p.m. in the Sycamore Room 
 

16. Future Agenda Items-- All matters listed under Future Agenda Items are items for 
a future Board Meetings.  No action will be taken by the Board on these agenda 
items at this meeting.  The Board will take action on these items at a future Board 
Meeting.    

 

a. Parking Report 
 

b. Census Report 
 

c. Alternative Heat Source Policy (August initial notification—September 
postponed) 
 

d. Resident Suggestion Program 
 



 
 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Regular Board Open Session Meeting  
January 21, 2020 
Page 5 of 5 
 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 
 

e. Businesses Owning Property within Laguna Woods Village 
 

f. Smoke Free Building Program  
 

g. Nuisance and Harassment Policy 
 

17.    Director's Comments 
 

18. Recess - At this time the Meeting will recess for lunch and reconvene to Executive 
Session to discuss the following matters per California Civil Code §4935.   

 

Closed Session Agenda  
Approval of Agenda 
Approval of the Following Meeting Minutes; 

(a) December 17, 2019—Regular Closed Session 
Discuss and Consider Member Matters 
Discuss Personnel Matters 
Discuss and Consider Contractual Matters 
Discuss and Consider Litigation Matters 
 

19. Adjourn 



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 2 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 3 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 4 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 5 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 6 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 7 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 8 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 9 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 10 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 11 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 12 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 13 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 14 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 15 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 16 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 17 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 18 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 19 of 24



 
 
Third Mutual Laguna Hills 
Regular Board Meeting 
December 17, 2019 
Page 20 of 24 
 
Discussion ensued among the Directors. 

 
President Parsons called for the vote, and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
The following item was removed by the Board: 
13d.  Entertain a Motion to Introduce a Resolution for Nuisance Policy  
 
The following item was removed by the Board: 
13e.  Entertain a Motion to Introduce a Resolution for Harassment Policy  
 
13f. Entertain a Motion to Introduce a Resolution for Internal Dispute Policy  
 
Director Jarrett presented a summary of the following Resolution:  

 
RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 

INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, Civil Code §5910 establishes requirements for Internal 
Dispute Resolution meetings; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board recognizes the need to revise the Internal Dispute 
Resolution to include a time frame for reaching a resolution; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED; [DATE], 2020, that the Board of 
Directors of this Corporation hereby approves the revised Internal Dispute 
Resolution, as attached to the official minutes of this meeting; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 03-15-85 adopted June 16, 2015 
is hereby superseded in its entirety and cancelled; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose 
of this resolution. 
 
DECEMBER Initial Notification 
Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff recommends that a 
motion be made and seconded to accept the resolution and allow discussion to 
ensure that the resolution reads to the satisfaction of the Board. Staff then 
recommends that a Board Member postpones the resolution to the next available 
Board Meeting no less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with Civil 
Code §4360. 

 
 

Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 20 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 21 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 22 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 23 of 24



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 24 of 24



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
DATE: January 21, 2020 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Variance Request 
 Ms. Sharon Evans of 3510-3G (Villa Nueva, LH21C) 
 Request to Retain Non-Standard Color on Two Exterior Entry Doors 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Board approve the request to retain the non-standard color on two 
exterior doors with the conditions in Appendix A. 

BACKGROUND  

During a resale inspection prior to the change of ownership of unit 3510-3G, the entry door to 
the unit was found to be a non-standard blue color. In order to close escrow in a timely 
manner, the new owner (Ms. Sharon Evans) signed a Responsibility Agreement for the entry 
door color correction, that would require the door do be brought into compliance or a variance 
to be submitted and approved to retain the alteration color within six months of escrow closing 
(April 2nd,2019).  A variance to retain the alterations was submitted on October 2, 2019, by the 
new owner Ms. Evans (see Attachment 1). 

Due to selected color not meeting existing Mutual Standards, Staff requires Board approval 
prior to issuing a Mutual Consent.  

The location of the alteration being requested by Variance is located on Exclusive Use 
Common Area. 

Due to the new owner taking responsibility for the non-standard alteration that was installed by 
a previous owner, a disciplinary hearing was not scheduled. 

DISCUSSION 

Ms. Evans is requesting to retain the blue color used on her entry door. The door is not directly 
visible from the street. Photos of the door and a map of the area are shown in Attachments 2 
and 3.   
 
Third Mutual Alteration Standards Section 10 - Doors, Exterior (Revised March 2018), 
paragraph 3.1 states, “All doors shall be of wood, fiberglass, or vinyl clad materials. Doors 
shall be the body or trim color of the building, or be white. Doors may have natural or stained 
wood finish”. 
 
The current color scheme for Building 3510 requires Shadow Box or White High Hiding to be 
used as the entry door paint color.  
 

Agenda Item # 11a(1) 
Page 1 of 10



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request for 3510-3G 
November 25, 2019 
Page 2 
 
The alteration is not clearly visible from the surrounding units and is similar to the Krimson 
Lake blue color that had been an option for door colors on previous paint schemes. For these 
reasons, Staff recommends approval of the request.   

The Board approved requests for non-standard entry door colors for Manors 3433-B in March 
2013, 3377-A in June 2013, 3304-N in February 2014, 5365-C in July 2015, 5072 in 
September 2015, 3459-A in March 2016, 3415-B in June 2016, 3044-B in September 2017, 
3421-3A in December 2017, 3386-B in February 2018 and 5398-A in December 2018.  

At the time of preparing this report, there are no open Mutual Consents for unit 3510-3G.  

A Neighbor Awareness Notice was posted in the mailroom of building 3510 on November 14, 
2019, due to no neighbor having line of sight of the alteration or being effected by debris or 
noise. 

At the time of writing, there has been no response to the Neighbor Awareness Notices.  

All future costs and maintenance associated with the subject alterations are the responsibility 
of the Mutual member(s) at 3510-3G.  

 
Prepared By: Gavin Fogg, Inspections Supervisor 
   
Reviewed By: Brett Crane, Permits, Inspections & Restoration Manager 
 Alisa Rocha, Alterations Coordinator 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

Appendix A:  Conditions of Approval 
Attachment 1: Variance Request, October 2, 2019  
Attachment 2:  Photos 
Attachment 3:  Map 
Attachment 4: Resolution 03-20-XX 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 11a(1) 
Page 2 of 10



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request for 3510-3G 
November 25, 2019 
Page 3 
 

APPENDIX A 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Conditions of approval would be as follows: 

1. No  improvement  shall  be  installed,  constructed,  modified  or  altered  at  unit 5, 
(“Property”) within the Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”) unless and until a Mutual 
Consent for Alterations application for the improvement has been made to, and 
approved, in writing, by, the Village Management Services, Inc. (“VMS, Inc.”), 
Alterations Division (“Division”), or, in the event of a Variance from the Mutual’s 
Alteration Standards, the Architectural Control and Standards Committee (“ACSC”). 
In the event written permission is given for the installation, construction, 
modification or alteration of any improvement(s) upon the Property, the Member 
Owner or Owners (“Member Owner”) agrees to comply with the Mutual’s Governing 
Documents and any specific terms or conditions imposed, and that the installation, 
construction, modification or alteration shall be in strict compliance with the terms of 
the approval. 

2. A  Variance for Unit Alterations has been granted at 3510-3G for Retain non-standard 
entry door color subject to the attached plans stamped approved and is subject to the 
final inspection by the Division. Any variations to the approved attached plans are not 
allowed and could result in a stop work notice and/or severe fines to the Member. 

3. All costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal of the 
improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s Member Owner 
at 3510-3G and all future Mutual members at 3510-3G. 

4. Parking of contractors or other invitees’ vehicles is prohibited in covered resident 
parking, open resident spaces, handicapped spaces or fire lanes. Contractors or other 
invitees must park on the street. To the extent possible contractors’ or other invitees’ 
vehicles should be limited in number. 

5. Member Owner shall be responsible for all activity by contractors, subcontractors, 
material suppliers and their employees and agents and any others who perform work on 
the Property, including any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents, including, 
but not limited to, traffic and parking violations, maintenance of a clean job site at all 
times, and use of Mutual property for storage of equipment or materials without prior 
approval. Member Owner acknowledges and agrees that all such persons are his/her 
invitees. Member Owner shall be responsible for informing all his/her invitees of the 
Mutual’s Rules and Regulations.   

6. Member Owner hereby consents to and grants to the Mutual and the Division, and their 
representatives, a right of entry upon the Property at any time to be used to inspect the 
Property and the improvements thereon and for the Mutual and the Division, and their 
representatives and contractors to remedy any violation upon the   Property, including, 
but not limited to, removing trash, removing any improvement installed without approval 
or modifying an improvement to bring the same into compliance with the terms of the 
approval. 

Agenda Item # 11a(1) 
Page 3 of 10



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request for 3510-3G 
November 25, 2019 
Page 4 
 

7. Member Owner shall be liable for any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents by 
any invitee, including any fine, assessment, traffic or other charge levied in connection 
therewith. 

8. Member is responsible for following the gate clearance process in place to admit 
contractors and other invitees. 

9. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, the Member shall post a 
Conformance Deposit in the amount of $250 for all improvements exceeding a total of 
$500.The Conformance Deposit will be held until Final City Building Permit Issuance if 
required, to assure no damages to Mutual property occurs during construction, 
including, but not limited to, internet/TV, landscaping, or exterior walls/roof. 

10. The Conformance Deposit shall be held by the Mutual and applied, at the Mutual’s sole 
discretion, to any fine levied against the Member Owner or the Property, to cover and/or 
recoup any costs whatsoever, including, but not be limited to, administrative and legal 
costs, incurred by the Mutual or VMS, Inc., in connection with the Property, or to any 
unpaid charges or assessments on the Mutual’s account for the Property. For example, 
the Mutual could apply all or a portion of the Conformance Deposit to cover the 
following: fines levied against any invitee of Member Owner; fines levied for  
construction  violations;  costs  incurred  by  the Mutual in repairing damage to Mutual 
property caused by Member  Owner’s contractor or other invitee; costs incurred by the 
Mutual in curing a violation on the Property; costs incurred in removing or altering an 
improvement upon the Property; or to an unpaid assessment, special assessment, late 
charge, interest or collection costs  posted  to  the  Mutual’s  account  for  the  Property.  
The foregoing list is illustrative only and in no way represents the only situations where 
the Mutual could apply all or a portion of the Conformance Deposit. 

11. If at any time the amount of the Conformance Deposit falls below 3/4ths of the amount 
originally required to be posted, Member Owner agrees to immediately deposit 
additional sums with the Mutual in an amount sufficient to return the Conformance 
Deposit to the originally required level. Until the Conformance Deposit is so replenished, 
an automatic stop work order shall be in effect. 

12. Any remaining Conformance Deposit is refundable if the Member Owner notifies the 
Division, in writing, that the improvement(s) for which the Conformance Deposit was 
posted have been completed in accordance with the approval, and the Division agrees 
with the same.  The Mutual will mail the unused portion of the Conformance Deposit, if 
any, to the Member Owner’s address of record with the Mutual. Under no circumstances 
shall Member Owner be entitled to any interest on any portion of the Conformance 
Deposit. If no written request for return of a Conformance Deposit is made by Member 
Owner within two years from the date when the Conformance Deposit is posted with the 
Mutual, the Conformance Deposit will be deemed forfeited to the Mutual. 

13. All improvements must be installed in accordance with the California State Building 
Code, and the published Mutual Architectural Alterations Standards. See 
http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com. 

14. During construction, work hours established by the Mutual and the Noise Ordinance set 
forth in the City of Laguna Woods Municipal Code must be adhered to at all times. 

Agenda Item # 11a(1) 
Page 4 of 10

http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/


Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request for 3510-3G 
November 25, 2019 
Page 5 

15. During construction, both the Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations and the City Building
Permit must be on display for public view at all times in a location approved by the
Division.

16. It is mandatory that no waste or materials associated with the construction be dumped
in the Village trash bins; such waste or materials associated with the construction must
be disposed of offsite by the contractor.

17. A dumpster is approved for placement at the location identified by Security Staff by
calling 949-580-1400. All dumpsters must conform to the Policy for Temporary
Containers. Dumpsters must be ordered from the approved City of Laguna Woods
waste hauler and must be maintained at all times.

18. A portable bathroom is approved for placement at the location identified by Security
Staff by calling 949-580-1400.

19. The Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations expires six months after the date of approval,
unless an application is submitted with fees and approved by the Division for an
extension.  Only one extension for a maximum of an additional six months may be
granted.

20. Violations of the forgoing conditions or the Mutual’s Governing Documents (See
http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com), including, but not limited to, work outside the
approved plans, excessive noise, illegal dumping, or working after hours, will result in
disciplinary action, which could result in a stop work notice, loss of privileges and/or
severe fines to the Owner Member. Such fines left unpaid will result in forfeiture of a
portion or all of the Conformance Deposit required above or other legal remedy.

21. Mutual member shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Third and its officers,
directors, committee members and agents from and against any and all claims, 
demands, costs, fines, judgments, settlements and any other costs, expenses, amounts
 and liabilities arising from Mutual  member’s  improvements  and installation, 
construction, design and maintenance of same. 

Agenda Item # 11a(1)
Page 5 of 10



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 11a(1)
Page 6 of 10

rochaa
Typewritten Text
Attachment: 1



Agenda Item # 11a(1)
Page 7 of 10



Agenda Item # 11a(1)
Page 8 of 10

foggg
Text Box
Attachment: 2

foggg
Text Box
Entry Door

foggg
Text Box
Entry Door



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 11a(1) 
Page 9 of 10

foggg
Text Box
Attachment:3

foggg
Text Box
A

foggg
Text Box
B

foggg
Text Box
C

foggg
Text Box
D

foggg
Text Box
E

foggg
Text Box
F

foggg
Text Box
G

foggg
Text Box
G

foggg
Text Box
F

foggg
Text Box
E

foggg
Text Box
D

foggg
Text Box
C

foggg
Text Box
B

foggg
Text Box
A

foggg
Callout
Location of Entry Door

foggg
Callout
Location of Entry Door



this page intentionally left blank



 
 
 

RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 
Variance Request 

WHEREAS, Ms. Sharon Evans of 3510-3G, a Villa Nueva style unit, is requesting Board 
approval of a variance to retain non-standard color on two exterior entry doors; and, 

WHEREAS, a Neighborhood Awareness Notice was sent to Owners of affected units on 
November 25, 2019, notifying them that an application to make an alteration to a 
neighboring unit had been made and that comments or objections could be made in 
writing to the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee or in person at the 
Architectural Controls and Standards Committee Meeting on December 3, 2019. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on January 21, 2020, the Board of Directors 
hereby approves the request to retain non-standard color on two exterior entry doors;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, all costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or 
removal of the improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s 
Member Owner at 3510-3G and all future Mutual members at 3510-3G 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

 

ATTACHMENT 4

Agenda Item # 11a(1) 
Page 10 of 10



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: January 21, 2020 

FOR: Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Variance Request 
Ms. Hope H Miller of 5165 (Villa Paraisa, C13C_1) 
Request to Retain Non-Standard Entry Door and Install Stacked Stone 
Veneer on Front Exterior Wall 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Board approve the request to retain the non-standard entry door and 
install stacked stone veneer on the front exterior wall with the conditions stated in Appendix A. 

BACKGROUND 

Ms. Miller of 5165 Belmez, a Villa Paraisa style unit, was previously approved to extend the 
entry door by 7’-4” via Board approval of a variance in February 2019. At the time of the 
request, the existing door was proposed to be moved forward, however a different door with 
was installed during construction (see Attachments 1 and 2). 

Due to selected color not meeting existing Mutual Standards, Staff requires Board approval 
prior to issuing a Mutual Consent 

As per Committee’s direction regarding Variance requests for retaining non-authorized 
alterations, Compliance was notified on July 7, 2019, of the unauthorized alteration; a 
disciplinary hearing is pending. 

Ms. Miller is also requesting to install a stacked stone veneer wall cover on the front exterior 
wall of her unit. No work has been performed on this alteration at the time of writing the report. 

Due to the existing Mutual Standard 12: Exterior Wall Attachments; Section 2.5, requiring all 
attachments to be limited to only those walls which face Exclusive Use Common Areas, such 
as patios or atriums, staff require Board approval for the alteration.  

The cost of the proposed alteration would be borne by the Member. 

DISCUSSION 

Ms. Miller is requesting to retain the factory painted ’steel blue’ color entry door. The door is 
not directly visible from the street. Photos of the door and a map of the area are shown 
in Attachments 2 and 3.   

Third Mutual Alteration Standards Section 10 - Doors, Exterior (Revised March 2018), 
paragraph 3.1 states, “All doors shall be of wood, fiberglass, or vinyl clad materials. Doors 
shall be the body or trim color of the building, or be white. Doors may have natural or stained 
wood finish”. 

Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 1 of 16



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request for 5165 
November 25, 2019 
Page 2 

The current color scheme for Building 5165 requires Basic Khaki or Woodruff or White High 
Hiding to be used as the entry door paint color.  

Staff recommends approval of the request due to the alteration is not clearly visible from the 
surrounding units and is similar to the ‘Night Sky’ color that is available as a trim color under 
the current paint scheme.  

The Board approved requests for non-standard entry door colors for Manors 3433-B in March 
2013, 3377-A in June 2013, 3304-N in February 2014, 5365-C in July 2015, 5072 in 
September 2015, 3459-A in March 2016, 3415-B in June 2016, 3044-B in September 2017, 
3421-3A in December 2017, 3386-B in February 2018 and 5398-A in December 2018.  

Ms. Miller also proposes to install a stacked stone veneer on the front exterior wall of the unit 
measuring 2’ tall and spanning). The stone veneer would accent the existing colors of the unit 
(Attachment 1). 

Staff determined there would be no impairment of the structural integrity or mechanical 
systems of the surrounding buildings or lessening of its support and recommends approval of 
this request, as the styling of the alteration does not cause any negative effect on the 
surrounding units. 

Previous examples of stacked stone veneer used to decorate the front of units are at 5283 in 
July 2007, 5202 in February 2011, 5305 in April 2015, 5232 in October 2015, 5284 in April 
2016 and 5212 in December 2017. 

Neighbor Awareness Notices were sent to affected Units 5160, 5161, 5162, 5163, 5164, 5166 
and 5167 November 12, 2019; as of the writing of this report, no responses were received. 

At the time of preparation of this report, there was one open Mutual Consent for a whole unit 
remodel, pending final approval once the door variance has received its decision: 

 Description Received Date Mutual Permit 
Entry Extension (Variance) 4/1/2019 190297 
Bedroom Extension (Variance) 4/1/2019 190297 
Bedroom Extension (Variance) 4/1/2019 190297 
Raise Living Room Ceiling (Variance) 4/1/2019 190297 
Electrical Throughout 4/1/2019 190297 
Remove Nook Window 4/1/2019 190297 
Remove Dining Room Window 4/1/2019 190297 
Shower to Shower 4/1/2019 190297 
Entry Door Revision 4/1/2019 190297 
Central HVAC (Changeout) 4/1/2019 190297 
Entry Skylight 4/1/2019 190297 
Living Room Skylight 4/1/2019 190297 
Repipe 4/1/2019 190297 
Water Heater Relocation 4/1/2019 190297 
Laundry Sink 4/1/2019 190297 

Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 2 of 16



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request for 5165 
November 25, 2019 
Page 3 

All future costs and maintenance associated with the subject alterations are the responsibility 
of the Mutual member(s) at 5165. 

Prepared By: Gavin Fogg, Inspections Supervisor 

Reviewed By: Brett Crane, Permits, Inspections & Restoration Manager 
Alisa Rocha, Alterations Coordinator 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

Appendix A:  Conditions of Approval 

Attachment 1: Variance Request, October 25, 2019 

Attachment 2: Photos 

Attachment 3: Map 

Attachment 4: Resolution 03-20-XX 

Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 3 of 16



this page intentionally left blank



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request for 5165 
November 25, 2019 
Page 4 

APPENDIX A 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Conditions of approval would be as follows: 

1. No  improvement  shall  be  installed,  constructed,  modified  or  altered  at  unit 5165,
(“Property”) within the Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”) unless and until a Mutual
Consent for Alterations application for the improvement has been made to, and
approved, in writing, by, the Village Management Services, Inc. (“VMS, Inc.”),
Alterations Division (“Division”), or, in the event of a Variance from the Mutual’s
Alteration Standards, the Architectural Control and Standards Committee (“ACSC”). In
the event written permission is given for the installation, construction, modification or
alteration of any improvement(s) upon the Property, the Member Owner or Owners
(“Member Owner”) agrees to comply with the Mutual’s Governing Documents and any
specific terms or conditions imposed, and that the installation, construction, modification
or alteration shall be in strict compliance with the terms of the approval.

2. A  Variance  for  Unit  Alterations  has  been  granted  at  5165  for Retain non-standard
entry door and install stack stone veneer on front exterior wall, subject to the
attached plans stamped approved and is subject to the final inspection by the Division.
Any variations to the approved attached plans are not allowed and could result in a stop
work notice and/or severe fines to the Member.

3. All costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal of the improvement,
present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s Member Owner at 5165 and all
future Mutual members at 5165.

4. Parking of contractors or other invitees’ vehicles is prohibited in covered resident parking,
open resident spaces, handicapped spaces or fire lanes. Contractors or other invitees must
park on the street. To the extent possible contractors’ or other invitees’ vehicles should be
limited in number.

5. This approval does not change the number of bedrooms or the original maximum
occupants permitted in the Unit.

6. Member Owner(s) of the Property must sign and submit to the Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., at
the Division office located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center, an executed
and notarized “Covenant to Run with the Land” for a proposed improvement that would
utilize any portion of the Mutual’s Common Area. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual
Consent for Unit Alterations, that “Recordable Common Area Agreement” must be filed
with the Orange County Clerk/Recorder.

7. Member Owner shall be responsible for all activity by contractors, subcontractors, material
suppliers and their employees and agents and any others who perform work on the
Property, including any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents, including, but not
limited to, traffic and parking violations, maintenance of a clean job site at all times, and
use of Mutual property for storage of equipment or materials without prior approval.
Member Owner acknowledges and agrees that all such persons are his/her invitees.
Member Owner shall be responsible for informing all his/her invitees of the Mutual’s Rules

Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 4 of 16



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request for 5165 
November 25, 2019 
Page 5 

and Regulations.  

8. Member Owner hereby consents to and grants to the Mutual and the Division, and their
representatives, a right of entry upon the Property at any time to be used to inspect the
Property and the improvements thereon and for the Mutual and the Division, and their
representatives and contractors to remedy any violation upon the   Property, including, but
not limited to, removing trash, removing any improvement installed without approval or
modifying an improvement to bring the same into compliance with the terms of the
approval.

9. Member Owner shall be liable for any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents by
any invitee, including any fine, assessment, traffic or other charge levied in connection
therewith.

10. Member is responsible for following the gate clearance process in place to admit
contractors and other invitees.

11. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, the Member shall post a
Conformance Deposit in the amount of $250 for all improvements exceeding a total of
$500.The Conformance Deposit will be held until Final City Building Permit Issuance if
required, to assure no damages to Mutual property occurs during construction, including,
but not limited to, internet/TV, landscaping, or exterior walls/roof.

12. The Conformance Deposit shall be held by the Mutual and applied, at the Mutual’s sole
discretion, to any fine levied against the Member Owner or the Property, to cover and/or
recoup any costs whatsoever, including, but not be limited to, administrative and legal
costs, incurred by the Mutual or VMS, Inc., in connection with the Property, or to any
unpaid charges or assessments on the Mutual’s account for the Property. For example,
the Mutual could apply all or a portion of the Conformance Deposit to cover the following:
fines levied against any invitee of Member Owner; fines levied for  construction  violations;
costs  incurred  by  the Mutual in repairing damage to Mutual property caused by Member
Owner’s contractor or other invitee; costs incurred by the Mutual in curing a violation on
the Property; costs incurred in removing or altering an improvement upon the Property; or
to an unpaid assessment, special assessment, late charge, interest or collection costs
posted  to  the  Mutual’s  account  for  the  Property.  The foregoing list is illustrative only
and in no way represents the only situations where the Mutual could apply all or a portion
of the Conformance Deposit.

13. If at any time the amount of the Conformance Deposit falls below 3/4ths of the amount
originally required to be posted, Member Owner agrees to immediately deposit additional
sums with the Mutual in an amount sufficient to return the Conformance Deposit to the
originally required level. Until the Conformance Deposit is so replenished, an automatic
stop work order shall be in effect.

14. Any remaining Conformance Deposit is refundable if the Member Owner notifies the
Division, in writing, that the improvement(s) for which the Conformance Deposit was
posted have been completed in accordance with the approval, and the Division agrees
with the same.  The Mutual will mail the unused portion of the Conformance Deposit, if
any, to the Member Owner’s address of record with the Mutual. Under no circumstances
shall Member Owner be entitled to any interest on any portion of the Conformance

Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 5 of 16



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request for 5165 
November 25, 2019 
Page 6 

Deposit. If no written request for return of a Conformance Deposit is made by Member 
Owner within two years from the date when the Conformance Deposit is posted with the 
Mutual, the Conformance Deposit will be deemed forfeited to the Mutual. 

15. All improvements must be installed in accordance with the California State Building Code,
and the published Mutual Architectural Alterations Standards, Policies and Guidelines.
See http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com.During construction, work hours established by
the Mutual and the Noise Ordinance set forth in the City of Laguna Woods Municipal Code
must be adhered to at all times.

17. During construction, both the Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations and the City Building
Permit must be on display for public view at all times in a location approved by the
Division.

18. It is mandatory that no waste or materials associated with the construction be dumped in
the Village trash bins; such waste or materials associated with the construction must be
disposed of offsite by the contractor.

19. A dumpster is approved for placement at the location identified by Security Staff by calling
949-580-1400. All dumpsters must conform to the Policy for Temporary Containers.
Dumpsters must be ordered from the approved City of Laguna Woods waste hauler and
must be maintained at all times.

20. A portable bathroom is approved for placement at the location identified by Security Staff
by calling 949-580-1400.

21. The Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations expires six months after the date of approval,
unless an application is submitted with fees and approved by the Division for an extension.
Only one extension for a maximum of an additional six months may be granted.

22. Violations of the forgoing conditions or the Mutual’s Governing Documents (See
http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com), including, but not limited to, work outside the
approved plans, excessive noise, illegal dumping, or working after hours, will result in
disciplinary action, which could result in a stop work notice, loss of privileges and/or
severe fines to the Owner Member. Such fines left unpaid will result in forfeiture of a
portion or all of the Conformance Deposit required above or other legal remedy.

23. Mutual member shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Third and its officers,
directors, committee members and agents from and against any and all claims, demands, 
costs, fines, judgments, settlements and any other costs, expenses, amounts and liabilities 
arising from Mutual  member’s  improvements  and installation, construction, design and 
maintenance of same. 

Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 6 of 16

http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/


this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 7 of 16

rochaa
Typewritten Text
Attachment: 1



Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 8 of 16



Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 9 of 16

foggg
Polygon

foggg
Polygon



Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 10 of 16



Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 11 of 16



Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 12 of 16



Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 13 of 16

foggg
Text Box
Attachment: 2

foggg
Text Box
Entry Door

foggg
Text Box
Entry Walkway 

foggg
Text Box
5164

foggg
Callout
Entry Door



Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 14 of 16

foggg
Text Box
Street View

foggg
Text Box
Front Exterior Wall 

foggg
Line

foggg
Callout
Proposed Stacked stone location

foggg
Line

foggg
Line

foggg
Callout
Proposed Stacked stone location



Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 15 of 16

foggg
Text Box
Attachment: 3

foggg
Callout
Entry way Door location

foggg
Callout
Proposed Stacked stone veneer location

foggg
Text Box
5166

foggg
Text Box
5167

foggg
Text Box
5162

foggg
Text Box
5163

foggg
Text Box
5161

foggg
Text Box
5164

foggg
Text Box
5160



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 
Variance Request 

WHEREAS, Ms. Hope H. Miller of 5165 Belmez, a Villa Paraisa style unit, is requesting 
Board approval of a variance to retain non-standard entry door and intall stacked stone 
veneer on front exterior wall; and, 

WHEREAS, a Neighborhood Awareness Notice was sent to Owners of affected units on 
November 25, 2019, notifying them that an application to make an alteration to a 
neighboring unit had been made and that comments or objections could be made in 
writing to the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee or in person at the 
Architectural Controls and Standards Committee Meeting on December 3, 2019. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on January 21, 2020, the Board of Directors 
hereby approves the request to retain non-standard entry door and intall stacked stone 
veneer on front exterior wall;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, all costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or 
removal of the improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s 
Member Owner at 5165 and all future Mutual members at 5165. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

ATTACHEMENT 4

Agenda Item # 11a(2)
Page 16 of 16



this page intentionally left blank



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
DATE: January 21, 2020 

FOR:  Board of Directors  

SUBJECT: Variance Request 
 Ms. Victoria S Pullman of 5589-A (Casa Palma, 10RC) 
 Request to Replace Planter with Wood Frame/Stucco Bathroom Extension 

on Original Exclusive Use Common Area 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Board approve the request to replace the original exclusive use 
common area planter with a wood frame and stucco exterior bathroom extension with the 
conditions stated in Appendix A.  

BACKGROUND 

Ms. Pullman of 5598-A Avenida Sosiega West, a Casa Palma style unit, is requesting Board 
approval of a variance to remove the existing block wall planter on the rear of the unit and  
extend the bathroom into that location (see Attachments 1 and 2). 

Due to no standard plan existing, staff requires Board approval prior to issuing a Mutual 
Consent.   

The cost of the proposed alteration would be borne by the Member.   

DISCUSSION 

Ms. Pullman is proposing to remove the existing 4’-0’ long by 9’-10” wide block wall planter 
with wooden gate and replace it with a wood framed and stucco finish enclosure that will use 
the existing roof. The current exterior wall and window between the bathroom and exterior 
planter area would also be demolished to create the extension. Since this proposal would take 
place under the existing roof and would not require any new roof tie-in. 

The left and right elevations of the extension would be solid stucco finish, while the rear 
elevation would contain an 8’-0” wide by 3’-0” tall vinyl framed sliding window.  

According to the condominium plan for the unit (Appendix B), the Planter is exclusive use 
common area. 

Stamped structural drawings will be required as a Condition of Approval along with the 
requirement to obtain a City of Laguna Woods permit to ensure code compliance and that 
structural integrity requirements are met. Detailed architectural drawings along with a City 
permit that would ensure Title 24 is met will be required for Mutual approval of any and all 
proposals considered. A City of Laguna Woods building permit final would verify compliance 
with all applicable building codes. 

Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 1 of 16



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request 5589-A 
November 25, 2019 
Page 2 
 
Neighbor Awareness Notices were sent to affected Units 5589-B on November 12, 2019; as of 
the writing of this report, no responses were received. 

There are no records of previous variance requests for similar alterations.  

At the time of preparing this report, there are no open Mutual Consents for this unit.  

All future costs and maintenance associated with the subject alterations are the responsibility 
of the Mutual member(s) at 5589-A. 

 

Prepared By: Gavin Fogg, Inspections Supervisor 

Reviewed By: Brett Crane, Permits, Inspections & Restoration Manager 

 Alisa Rocha, Alterations Coordinator 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

Appendix A:  Conditions of Approval 

Appendix B: Condo/Foundation Plan 

Attachment 1: Site Plan  

Attachment 2:  Variance Request, October 25, 2019  

Attachment 3:  Photos 

Attachment 4:  Map  

Attachment 5: Resolution 03-20-XX 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 2 of 16



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request 5589-A 
November 25, 2019 
Page 3 
 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Conditions of approval would be as follows: 

1. No  improvement  shall  be  installed,  constructed,  modified  or  altered  at  unit 5589-A, 
(“Property”) within the Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”) unless and until a Mutual 
Consent for Alterations application for the improvement has been made to, and 
approved, in writing, by, the Village Management Services, Inc. (“VMS, Inc.”), 
Alterations Division (“Division”), or, in the event of a Variance from the Mutual’s 
Alteration Standards, the Architectural Control and Standards Committee (“ACSC”). In 
the event written permission is given for the installation, construction, modification or 
alteration of any improvement(s) upon the Property, the Member Owner or Owners 
(“Member Owner”) agrees to comply with the Mutual’s Governing Documents and any 
specific terms or conditions imposed, and that the installation, construction, modification 
or alteration shall be in strict compliance with the terms of the approval. 

2. A  Variance  for  Unit  Alterations  has  been  granted  at  5589-A  for Replace Planter 
with Wood Frame/Stucco bathroom Extension, subject to the attached plans stamped 
approved and is subject to the final inspection by the Division. Any variations to the 
approved attached plans are not allowed and could result in a stop work notice and/or 
severe fines to the Member. 

3. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, a complete set of unit 
specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the 
proposed improvement must be submitted to the Division office located in the Laguna 
Woods Village Community Center. The plans must depict any required structural 
modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is maintained upon completion 
of the proposed improvement. 

4. All costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal of the improvement, 
present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s Member Owner at 5589-A and 
all future Mutual members at 5589-A. 

5. Parking of contractors or other invitees’ vehicles is prohibited in covered resident parking, 
open resident spaces, handicapped spaces or fire lanes. Contractors or other invitees must 
park on the street. To the extent possible contractors’ or other invitees’ vehicles should be 
limited in number. 

6. This approval does not change the number of bedrooms or the original maximum 
occupants permitted in the Unit. 

7. Member Owner(s) of the Property must sign and submit to the Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., at 
the Division office located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center, an executed 
and notarized “Covenant to Run with the Land” for a proposed improvement that would 
utilize any portion of the Mutual’s Common Area. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual 
Consent for Unit Alterations, that “Recordable Common Area Agreement” must be filed 
with the Orange County Clerk/Recorder. 

Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 3 of 16



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request 5589-A 
November 25, 2019 
Page 4 
 
8. A City of Laguna Woods permit is required, which may include the requirement to obtain 

clearance from the South Coast Air Quality Management District (Asbestos Hot Line at 
(909) 396-2336). Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, the 
appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be submitted to the Division 
office located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center. The City permit must be 
finalized within the prescribed timeframe, and a copy of the final permit must be submitted 
to the Division within two weeks. 

9. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, if required, a Mutual Roof 
Alteration Notification (“Tie-In Form”) must be submitted to the Division. All roof tie-ins 
must be performed by a C-39 Licensed Contractor. The Member Owner may hire a C-39 
Licensed Contractor of his/her own choice to perform roof tie-ins for the installation of solar 
panels on all roof types except PVC Cool Roofs. For PVC Cool Roofs, regardless of the 
roof type, all tie-ins must be performed by the Mutual’s roofing contractor at the Member 
Owner’s expense. All tie-ins may only be made to sound structural elements. Existing 
structural elements proposed to be tied to, which exhibit signs of dry rot or other structural 
defects, must first be replaced or repaired at the Member Owner’s expense during 
construction of the improvement. 

10. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, any altered exterior surface 
should match the Building color; vinyl fence/gate will be either white or taupe, tubular steel 
or wrought iron fence/gate will be black or white; the approved colors and materials are 
identified as “Third Laguna Hill Mutual Color Selections” at Resident Services, located at 
the Community Center first floor. 

11. Member Owner shall be responsible for all activity by contractors, subcontractors, material 
suppliers and their employees and agents and any others who perform work on the 
Property, including any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents, including, but not 
limited to, traffic and parking violations, maintenance of a clean job site at all times, and 
use of Mutual property for storage of equipment or materials without prior approval. 
Member Owner acknowledges and agrees that all such persons are his/her invitees. 
Member Owner shall be responsible for informing all his/her invitees of the Mutual’s Rules 
and Regulations.   

12. Member Owner hereby consents to and grants to the Mutual and the Division, and their 
representatives, a right of entry upon the Property at any time to be used to inspect the 
Property and the improvements thereon and for the Mutual and the Division, and their 
representatives and contractors to remedy any violation upon the   Property, including, but 
not limited to, removing trash, removing any improvement installed without approval or 
modifying an improvement to bring the same into compliance with the terms of the 
approval. 

13. Member Owner shall be liable for any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents by 
any invitee, including any fine, assessment, traffic or other charge levied in connection 
therewith. 

14. Member is responsible for following the gate clearance process in place to admit 
contractors and other invitees. 

15. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, the Member shall post a 

Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 4 of 16



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request 5589-A 
November 25, 2019 
Page 5 
 

Conformance Deposit in the amount of $250 for all improvements exceeding a total of 
$500.The Conformance Deposit will be held until Final City Building Permit Issuance if 
required, to assure no damages to Mutual property occurs during construction, including, 
but not limited to, internet/TV, landscaping, or exterior walls/roof. 

16. The Conformance Deposit shall be held by the Mutual and applied, at the Mutual’s sole 
discretion, to any fine levied against the Member Owner or the Property, to cover and/or 
recoup any costs whatsoever, including, but not be limited to, administrative and legal 
costs, incurred by the Mutual or VMS, Inc., in connection with the Property, or to any 
unpaid charges or assessments on the Mutual’s account for the Property. For example, 
the Mutual could apply all or a portion of the Conformance Deposit to cover the following: 
fines levied against any invitee of Member Owner; fines levied for  construction  violations;  
costs  incurred  by  the Mutual in repairing damage to Mutual property caused by Member  
Owner’s contractor or other invitee; costs incurred by the Mutual in curing a violation on 
the Property; costs incurred in removing or altering an improvement upon the Property; or 
to an unpaid assessment, special assessment, late charge, interest or collection costs  
posted  to  the  Mutual’s  account  for  the  Property.  The foregoing list is illustrative only 
and in no way represents the only situations where the Mutual could apply all or a portion 
of the Conformance Deposit. 

17. If at any time the amount of the Conformance Deposit falls below 3/4ths of the amount 
originally required to be posted, Member Owner agrees to immediately deposit additional 
sums with the Mutual in an amount sufficient to return the Conformance Deposit to the 
originally required level. Until the Conformance Deposit is so replenished, an automatic 
stop work order shall be in effect. 

18. Any remaining Conformance Deposit is refundable if the Member Owner notifies the 
Division, in writing, that the improvement(s) for which the Conformance Deposit was 
posted have been completed in accordance with the approval, and the Division agrees 
with the same.  The Mutual will mail the unused portion of the Conformance Deposit, if 
any, to the Member Owner’s address of record with the Mutual. Under no circumstances 
shall Member Owner be entitled to any interest on any portion of the Conformance 
Deposit. If no written request for return of a Conformance Deposit is made by Member 
Owner within two years from the date when the Conformance Deposit is posted with the 
Mutual, the Conformance Deposit will be deemed forfeited to the Mutual. 

19. All improvements must be installed in accordance with the California State Building Code, 
and the published Mutual Architectural Alterations Standards. See 
http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com. 

20. During construction, work hours established by the Mutual and the Noise Ordinance set 
forth in the City of Laguna Woods Municipal Code must be adhered to at all times. 

21. During construction, both the Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations and the City Building 
Permit must be on display for public view at all times in a location approved by the 
Division. 

22. It is mandatory that no waste or materials associated with the construction be dumped in 
the Village trash bins; such waste or materials associated with the construction must be 
disposed of offsite by the contractor. 

Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 5 of 16

http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/


Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request 5589-A 
November 25, 2019 
Page 6 
 
23. A dumpster is approved for placement at the location identified by Security Staff by calling 

949-580-1400. All dumpsters must conform to the Policy for Temporary Containers. 
Dumpsters must be ordered from the approved City of Laguna Woods waste hauler and 
must be maintained at all times. 

24. A portable bathroom is approved for placement at the location identified by Security Staff 
by calling 949-580-1400. 

25. The Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations expires six months after the date of approval, 
unless an application is submitted with fees and approved by the Division for an extension.  
Only one extension for a maximum of an additional six months may be granted. 

26. Violations of the forgoing conditions or the Mutual’s Governing Documents (See 
http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com), including, but not limited to, work outside the 
approved plans, excessive noise, illegal dumping, or working after hours, will result in  
disciplinary action, which could result in a stop work notice, loss of privileges and/or 
severe fines to the Owner Member. Such fines left unpaid will result in forfeiture of a 
portion or all of the Conformance Deposit required above or other legal remedy. 

27.  Mutual member shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Third and its officers, 
directors, committee members and agents from and against any and all claims, demands, 
costs, fines, judgments, settlements and any other costs, expenses, amounts and liabilities 
arising from Mutual  member’s  improvements  and installation, construction, design and 
maintenance of same. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 6 of 16



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request 5589-A 
November 25, 2019 
Page 7 
 

 
APPENDIX B 

 
Condominium Plan 

 

 
 
 
 

Foundation Plan 

Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 7 of 16



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 8 of 16

rochaa
Typewritten Text
Attachment: 1



Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 9 of 16



Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 10 of 16

rochaa
Typewritten Text
Attachment: 2



Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 11 of 16



Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 12 of 16



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 13 of 16

foggg
Text Box
Attachment: 3

foggg
Text Box
Planter

foggg
Text Box
Planter and Gate



Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 14 of 16

foggg
Text Box
Planter

foggg
Text Box
Rear Patio



Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 15 of 16

foggg
Text Box
Attachment: 4

foggg
Text Box
5589

foggg
Text Box
5580

foggg
Text Box
5590

foggg
Text Box
5598

foggg
Text Box
5581

foggg
Text Box
A

foggg
Text Box
B

foggg
Text Box
5589

foggg
Text Box
A

foggg
Text Box
B

foggg
Callout
Location of proposed extension

foggg
Callout
Location of proposed extension



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 
Variance Request 

WHEREAS, Ms. Victoria S. Pullman of 5589-A Avenida Sosiega West, a Casa Palma 
style unit, is requesting Board approval of a variance to replace planter with wood 
frame/stucco bathroom extension on original exclusice use common area; and, 

WHEREAS, a Neighborhood Awareness Notice was sent to Owners of affected units on 
November 25, 2019, notifying them that an application to make an alteration to a 
neighboring unit had been made and that comments or objections could be made in 
writing to the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee or in person at the 
Architectural Controls and Standards Committee Meeting on December 3, 2019. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on January 21, 2020, the Board of Directors 
hereby approves the request to replace planter with wood frame/stucco bathroom 
extension on original exclusice use common area;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, all costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or 
removal of the improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s 
Member Owner at 5589-A and all future Mutual members at 5589-A. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5

Agenda Item # 11a(3) 
Page 16 of 16



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: January 21, 2020
FOR:  Third Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Contract Award for Tree Maintenance Services 

RECOMMENDATION 

Award a contract to West Coast Arborists, Inc. in the amount of $503,121, which includes a ten 
percent contingency, to perform the tree maintenance services. 

BACKGROUND 

Third Mutual owns and maintains 13,960 trees. Based on the proposed five-year Species-
Based Tree Trimming Program, 4,000 trees must be trimmed annually to properly maintain the 
health and aesthetics of the trees. Staff tree trimmers have consistently only been able to trim 
2,600 trees per Mutual annually. This has caused the trees within the Mutual to be consistently 
overgrown which has led to a large amount of resident complaints and damage to Mutual and 
private property. 

This contract was reviewed and approved by the Landscape Committee on December 5, 2019. 

DISCUSSION 

The tree inventory in Third Mutual is aging and the trees need to be trimmed more often than 
in the past due to their size and age. To effectively manage the tree inventory within Third 
Mutual, Staff has proposed a five year Species-Based Tree Maintenance Program. This 
program will efficiently manage and schedule tree trimming based upon the growth rates of the 
tree based on the species. Current Staff are not able to handle the number of trees that need 
to be maintained annually. 

In an effort to reduce long term maintenance costs and reduce liability for employees, Staff 
proposes to outsource the tree maintenance.  Request for proposals were sent to four 
contractors; three responded and West Coast Arborists, Inc. was the low bidder. Average Staff 
costs for routine annual tree trimming averages $200 per tree. With this outsource contract, the 
unit price is $100 per tree. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

There are sufficient funds in the 2020 Business Plan for this contract. 

Prepared By: Kurt Wiemann, Senior Field Services Manager 
Reviewed By: Eve Morton, Landscape Coordinator 

Siobhan Foster, COO 
Betty Parker, CFO 

Agenda Item # 11b(1) 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
DATE: January 21, 2020 
FOR:  Third Board  
SUBJECT: Contract Award for Slope Modification and Maintenance 
  

RECOMMENDATION 

Award a contract to Mission Landscape, Inc. in the amount of $470,176 for slope landscape 
maintenance. 

BACKGROUND 

The 2020 Third Laguna Hills Mutual Business Plan provides $470,176 for slope maintenance.  

This contract was reviewed and approved by the Landscape Committee on December 5, 2019. 

DISCUSSION 

Third Mutual is responsible for the maintenance of 119 acres of slopes. Slope maintenance 
has traditionally been performed by Staff. In 2019 the Board decided to outsource slope 
maintenance due to many of the slopes within the Mutual exceeding 35 percent grade which 
are difficult and time consuming to navigate. Additionally, slope work was determined to be a 
leading cause of injuries to Staff. This contract will continue to relieve Staff of the most difficult 
slope work and allow them to focus on maintaining the landscaping adjacent to manors. The 
remaining slopes will be maintained by Staff in conjunction with the shrub bed maintenance 
cycles.  

In 2019, Third Mutual sent Requests for Proposals to seven qualified contractors; Mission 
Landscape Inc. was the lowest bidder. In 2019, the Board awarded a renewable contract to 
Mission Landscape, Inc. in the amount of $652,039, to perform slope modification and 
maintenance. The slope modification portion of the 2019 contract will be complete in 
December 2019. The 2019 contract allows for annual renewal. As Mission has successfully 
performed, Staff recommends renewing the 2019 contract through 2020. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The 2020 Business Plan provides sufficient funding for this contract. 

 

Prepared By: Kurt Wiemann, Senior Field Services Manager 
Reviewed By: Eve Morton, Landscape Coordinator 
   Siobhan Foster, COO 
   Betty Parker, CFO 
 

Agenda Item # 11b(2) 
Page 1 of 7



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Supplemental Funding for Slope Repair  
January 21, 2020 
  

 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

Attachment 1: List of Slopes for Repair 
Attachment 2: Proposed Contract 
 

 
 

Agenda Item # 11b(2) 
Page 2 of 7

mortone
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT(S)Attachment 1:    List of Slopes for Repair

mortone
Typewritten Text



Map 
Section

Location (Bldg. #) Sq.Ft. Dimensions

5 4003-4005 80,500 100x805'

5 3085 Along Santa Maria to 3108 61,500 30'x2050'

5 4012-4015 Back Slope 60,480 40'x1512'

5 4003 Side Slope 42,000 60'x700'

5 Behind Carports 4001-4004 40,250 50x805'

5 4025-4026 Back Slope 35,520 40'x888'

5 4006-4010 Carports 34,000 50'x680'

5 4011 Front & 4025 Side 16,800 30x560'

5 3050-3053 Behind 10,500 30'x35'

5 3067-3073 Back 42,440 40'x1061'

5 3045-3049 Front 40,000 50'x800'

5 4001-4002 32,200 40'x805'

5 3084-3086 Behind 29,500 50'x590'

5 3205-3201 Behind 26,600 40'x664'

5 3059-3064 Behind 25,500 30'x850'

5 3085-3083 21,250 50'x425'

5 3119-3122 Back 19,500 30'x650'

5 3054-3055 Behind 16,415 35'x469'

5 3055-3086 Back 16,275 35'x465'

5 3210-3204 Back 25,725 35'x735'

5 3041-3044 Back Slope 22,000 40'x550'

Slope List

Agenda Item # 11b(2) 
Page 3 of 7

Mortone
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



5 3097-3101 Back Slope 16,800 30'x560'

5 3115-3117 12,000 40'x300'

6 3215-Gate 9 Slope along El Toro Rd. 176,700 60'x2945'

6 Gate 9 Slope around to San Amadeo 50,400 35'x1440'

6 5376-5378 Behind and Side of 5378 15,000 30'x500'

6 3210-3212 Slope along Carrizo 11,400 30'x380'

6 5396-5417 Behind 87,000 50'x1740'

6 5474-5484 Behind 60,000 50'x1200'

6
Slope along Paseo Del Logo East; 

Across from 5517-5518
39,600 60'x660'

6 3103-3104 Carports Slope behind 32,625 45'x725'

6 5391-5429 Behind 74,000 50'x1480'

6 CDS 374 Surrounding Slope 45,000 50'x900'

6 3281-3276 Slope along San Amedeo 41,440 35'x1184'

6 3312-3317 Slope behind Manors 22,000 50'x440'

6 3306-3308 Slope behind Carrizo 18,000 40'x450'

6 Behind 3302 & Carports 3098-3102 18,000 40'x450'

6 3241-3244 Slopes along San Amadeo 8,800 40'x220'

7 3487-3490 79,100 70'x1130'

7 5347-5358 69,344 32'x2167'

7 West Creek - 5290-5296 49,630 70'x709'

7 3421-3422 47,160 60'x786'

7 3425-3429 42,768 48'x891'

7 3419-3420 37,500 60'x625'

Agenda Item # 11b(2) 
Page 4 of 7



7 3493-3495 36,960 40'x924'

7 5162-5172, 5184-5190 35,640 30'x118'

7
5120-5139, 5076-5078, 5081-5082, 

5071-5073
31,230 30'x1041'

7 3435-3436, 3440-3444 28,688 22'x1304'

7
3447-3448, 3454-3456, 3459-3460, 

3465-3466
28,560 30'x952'

7 3482-3485 25,000 50'x500'

7 5519-5326 23,625 25'x945'

7 5316-5317, 5042-5049 22,775 25'x911'

7 5109-5117 21,070 35'x602'

7 3486 19,845 35'x567'

7 3423-3424 19,705 35'x563'

7 5269-5274 18,970 35'x542'

7 Building 3367 Back Slope 18,000 30'x600'

7 El Toro Water Tower/Bahia Blanca 17,850 50'x357'

7 5338-5343 11,750 25'x470'

7 5265-5268 7,840 28'x280'

7 3470-3471 7,500 20'x375'

7 3472-3474 6,875 25'x275'

7 5276-5278 6,480 20'x324'

7 3430-3431 5,500 25'x220'

7 3436-3438 3,200 20'x160'

7 5301-5309 15,314 38'x403'

8 On El Toro west of Gate 9 21,000 1100x19

Agenda Item # 11b(2) 
Page 5 of 7



8 3335-3337, 5318, 5370 91,350 70'x1305'

8 5544 -5556 Back Slope 77,445 45'x1721'

8  5569-5579 Back Slope 56,720 40'x1418'

8 5368 55,500 60'x925'

8 3412-3417 52,650 45'x1170'

8 5557-5568 Back Slope 49,385 35'x1411'

8 5368 Side Slope 41,400 45'x920'

8 5369 37,675 55x686'

8 3371 Side Slope 34,375 55'x625'

8 3334-3353 24,025 25'x961'

8 3327-3330 21,860 20'x1093'

8 3338 19,150 50'x383'

8 3405-3407 Side, Back 19,020 30'x654'

8 3354-3359 18,225 27'x675'

8 3367
18,080 40'x452'

8 3360-3362 14,625 25'x585'

8 3399 Back Slope 12,000 25'x480'

8 3395-3396 9,960 30'x332'

8 3382 9,640 20'x482'

8 5580-5588 Back Slope 43,120 35'x1232'

8 3508-3509 <3499> 34,000 40'x850'

8 3511 Monte Hermoso 32,880 40'x822'

8 5589-5595 31,650 30'x1055'

Agenda Item # 11b(2) 
Page 6 of 7



8 3524-3527 29,700 45'x660'

8 3501-3502, 3508-3509 28,500 30'x950'

8 3512-3516 <3517> 24,160 32'x755'

8 3518-3523 17,480 38'x460'

8 3363 & Carport 3119 11,865 35'x339'

8 CH 5 Side Slope 4,750 25'x190'

8 3503-3507 29,000 40'x725'

8 3364-3366 24,300 50'x486'

8 3511 Side of Unit 23,450 35'x670'

8 3528-3532 22,600 40'x565'

8 3363 Back Slope 13,560 30'x452'

101 Total Locations 3,151,355

Agenda Item # 11b(2) 
Page 7 of 7



this page intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 
APPROVE THE REQUEST FOR REMOVAL OF  

OF ONE SHAMEL ASH TREE – 3086-C VIA SERENA N. 

 

WHEREAS, September 20, 2011, that the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 
03-11-149, Tree Removal Guidelines: 

 Unless there is a purposeful reason, trees should not be removed merely 
because they are messy, or because of residents’ personal preferences 
concerning shape, color, size, or fragrance. 

 Trees should not be removed because of view obstruction if the 
obstruction is at a considerable distance from the complaining manor and 
therefore causes only a partial obstruction. 

 Trees on slopes should not be removed if the removal will contribute to the 
destabilization of that slope.   

 Trees which are damaging or will damage a structure, pose a hazard, in 
failing health or interfering with neighboring trees, will be considered for 
removal. 

WHEREAS, on January 2, 2020, the Landscape Committee reviewed a request for 
removal of one Shamel Ash tree. The request was received from the Member at 
3086-C who cited the reasons as overgrown, possible sewer damage, litter/debris, 
sidewalk damage, and a potential trip and fall hazard from fallen leaves onto the 
sidewalk and;  

WHEREAS, the Committee determined that the tree meets the guidelines 
established in Resolution 03-11-149, and recommends approving the request for the 
removal of one Shamel Ash tree located at 3086-C Via Serena N.   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, January 21, 2020, the Board of Directors 
approves the request for the removal of one Shamel Ash tree located at 3086-C;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.  

 

 

Agenda Item # 11b(3) 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 
 

Recording of a Lien 
 
WHEREAS, Member ID 931-720-36; is currently delinquent to Third 
Laguna Hills Mutual with regard to the monthly assessment; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Notice of Delinquent Assessment (Lien) will be filed upon 
adoption of this resolution following at least a majority vote of the Board 
(with no delegation of such action by the Board), acting in an open 
meeting, and for which the Board's vote is recorded in the minutes;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, January 21, 2020, that the Board 
of Directors hereby approves the recording of a Lien for Member ID 931-
720-36 and; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 11c(1) 
Page 1 of 2



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11c(1) 
Page 2 of 2



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: December 17, 2019 

FOR:           Third Board 
SUBJECT: Species-Based Tree Maintenance Program 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the Species-Based Tree Maintenance Program. 

BACKGROUND 

Current tree trimming policy calls for inspection and or trimming on a 34-month cycle. Third 
Mutual maintains more than 12,000 trees representing 224 different species. Under this 
program, trees are inspected for overgrowth, damage, disease and overall health. If the 
certified arborist determines that the tree needs trimming, the tree is placed on the 
schedule for trimming. This methodology is difficult to budget as the labor needs cannot be 
determined in advance and crew time is limited. This has left many trees unmaintained for 
years and caused unnecessary damage to Mutual property. 

DISCUSSION 

While climate and precipitation amounts affect tree growth, growth is generally consistent 
within species. With species-based trimming, trees are scheduled for trimming based solely 
upon the known growth rate of each tree. This allows for simpler budgeting and 
management of labor needs and results in regular trimming, reducing damage, and promoting 
healthy growth.  
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The Species-Based Tree Maintenance Program is initially expected to reduce the annual costs 
for service request trimming and the long-term costs for scheduled tree trimming. Actual cost 
savings have yet to be determined. 

Prepared By: Kurt Wiemann, Senior Field Services Manager 

Reviewed By: Eve Morton, Landscape Coordinator 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

Attachment 1: Example of Five-Year Trimming Rotation 
Attachment 2: Proposed Resolution Regarding Species-Based Tree Trimming Program 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 1 of 10



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 2 of 10



La
n

d
sc

ap
e

 D
iv

is
io

n

Th
ir

d
 M

u
tu

al
 T

re
e

s 
b

y 
Tr

im
 C

yc
le

 b
y 

Sp
e

ci
e

s

20
19

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

20
18

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

20
17

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

To
 b

e 
Tr

im
m

ed

*P
la

nn
ed

 
Tr

im
 

(F
is

ca
l 

Ye
ar

)

B
ot

an
ic

al
 N

am
e

C
om

m
on

 N
am

e
Q

ua
nt

ity
A

nn
ua

l 
Tr

im
 

C
yc

le

20
20

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
21

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
22

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
23

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

0
36

3
36

9
20

20
Ar

ch
on

to
ph

oe
ni

x 
cu

nn
in

gh
am

ia
na

Ki
ng

 P
al

m
40

8
4

40
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
Ar

ch
on

to
ph

oe
ni

x 
m

yo
le

ns
is

Ki
ng

 P
al

m
1

4
1

0
0

0
10

5
10

5
8

15
1

20
19

Sy
ag

ru
s 

ro
m

an
zo

ffi
an

um
Q

ue
en

 P
al

m
36

9
1

36
9

36
9

36
9

36
9

10
5

14
1

11
52

1
To

ta
l P

al
m

 T
re

es
:

77
8

77
8

36
9

36
9

36
9

To
ta

l C
on

tr
ac

te
d 

C
os

ts
 fo

r P
al

m
 T

re
es

:
$3

8,
90

0
$1

8,
45

0
$1

8,
45

0
$1

8,
45

0
0

27
0

14
20

20
R

hu
s 

la
nc

ea
Af

ric
an

 S
um

ac
41

2
41

0
41

0
0

54
0

72
20

20
G

ei
je

ra
 p

ar
vi

flo
ra

Au
st

ra
lia

n 
W

illo
w

12
6

2
12

6
0

12
6

0
1

73
8

28
7

20
20

Sc
hi

nu
s 

te
re

bi
nt

hi
fo

liu
s

Br
az

ilia
n 

Pe
pp

er
 

36
9

2
36

9
0

36
9

0
0

74
0

12
7

20
21

Sc
hi

nu
s 

m
ol

le
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 P
ep

pe
r 

20
1

2
20

1
0

20
1

0
1

40
0

16
3

20
20

Pl
at

an
us

 ra
ce

m
os

a
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 S
yc

am
or

e
20

4
2

20
4

0
20

4
0

1
49

0
5

26
0

20
20

C
up

an
io

ps
is

 a
na

ca
rd

io
id

es
C

ar
ro

tw
oo

d
75

6
2

75
6

0
75

6
0

0
3

1
23

20
20

Ko
el

re
ut

er
ia

 b
ip

in
na

ta
C

hi
ne

se
 F

la
m

e 
Tr

ee
27

2
27

0
27

0
0

0
0

3
20

20
C

hi
on

an
th

us
 re

tu
su

s
C

hi
ne

se
 F

rin
ge

 T
re

e
3

2
3

0
3

0
0

0
0

2
20

20
Pi

st
ac

ia
 c

hi
ne

ns
is

C
hi

ne
se

 P
is

ta
ch

e
2

2
2

0
2

0
0

2
0

0
20

20
Fi

cu
s 

sp
ec

ie
s

Fi
cu

s 
Sp

ec
ie

s
2

2
2

0
2

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
Fi

cu
s 

ru
bi

gi
no

sa
 'F

lo
rid

a'
Fl

or
id

a 
R

us
ty

le
af

 F
ig

1
2

1
0

1
0

0
3

0
11

20
20

C
as

si
a 

le
pt

op
hy

lla
G

ol
d 

M
ed

al
lio

n 
Tr

ee
14

2
14

0
14

0
0

1
0

52
20

20
Br

ah
ea

 e
du

lis
G

ua
da

lu
pe

 P
al

m
53

2
53

0
53

0
1

11
9

0
10

1
20

20
Fi

cu
s 

m
ic

ro
ca

rp
a 

'N
iti

da
'

In
di

an
 L

au
re

l F
ig

 
22

1
2

22
1

0
22

1
0

0
79

0
22

1
20

20
Ja

ca
ra

nd
a 

m
im

os
ifo

lia
Ja

ca
ra

nd
a

30
0

2
30

0
0

30
0

0
0

5
0

9
20

20
H

ar
pe

ph
yl

lu
m

 c
af

fru
m

Ka
ffi

r P
lu

m
14

2
14

0
14

0
0

5
0

9
20

20
W

as
hi

ng
to

ni
a 

ro
bu

st
a

M
ex

ic
an

 F
an

 P
al

m
14

2
14

0
14

0
0

30
0

26
20

20
Ag

on
is

 fl
ex

uo
sa

Pe
pp

er
m

in
t T

re
e

56
2

56
0

56
0

0
47

0
41

20
20

C
or

ym
bi

a 
fic

ifo
lia

R
ed

-F
lo

w
er

in
g 

G
um

88
2

88
0

88
0

0
14

7
4

14
5

20
20

Fi
cu

s 
ru

bi
gi

no
sa

R
us

ty
le

af
 F

ig
29

6
2

29
6

0
29

6
0

0
1

0
10

20
20

Ti
pu

an
a 

tip
u

Ti
pu

 
11

2
11

0
11

0
1

55
5

12
4

20
20

Fi
cu

s 
be

nj
am

in
a

W
ee

pi
ng

 F
ig

18
5

2
18

5
0

18
5

0
0

27
2

52
20

20
M

or
us

 a
lb

a
W

hi
te

 M
ul

be
rr

y
81

2
81

0
81

0
0

0
0

3
20

20
Sp

at
ho

de
a 

ca
m

pa
nu

la
ta

Af
ric

an
 T

ul
ip

 T
re

e
3

3
3

0
0

3
0

60
0

18
0

20
20

Pi
nu

s 
ha

le
pe

ns
is

Al
ep

po
 P

in
e

24
0

3
24

0
0

0
24

0
0

12
0

37
20

20
Pl

at
an

us
 o

cc
id

en
ta

lis
Am

er
ic

an
 S

yc
am

or
e

49
3

49
0

0
49

0
1

0
2

20
20

Sa
lix

 la
si

ol
ep

is
Ar

ro
yo

 W
illo

w
3

3
3

0
0

3
0

0
0

6
20

20
Ac

ac
ia

 b
ai

le
ya

na
Ba

ile
y 

Ac
ac

ia
 

6
3

6
0

0
6

0
2

0
3

20
20

R
ob

in
ia

 p
se

ud
oa

ca
ci

a
Bl

ac
k 

Lo
cu

st
5

3
5

0
0

5
0

0
0

16
20

20
Pi

tto
sp

or
um

 te
nu

ifo
liu

m
Bl

ac
ks

te
m

 P
itt

os
po

ru
m

16
3

16
0

0
16

0
0

0
18

20
20

Ac
ac

ia
 m

el
an

ox
yl

on
Bl

ac
kw

oo
d 

Ac
ac

ia
18

3
18

0
0

18
0

0
0

3
20

20
Ly

ci
an

th
es

 ra
nt

on
ne

tii
Bl

ue
 P

ot
at

o 
Bu

sh
3

3
3

0
0

3
0

46
2

13
1

20
20

Br
ac

hy
ch

ito
n 

po
pu

ln
eu

s
Bo

ttl
e 

Tr
ee

17
9

3
17

9
0

0
17

9
0

0
0

1
20

20
M

el
al

eu
ca

 a
rm

illa
ris

Br
ac

el
et

 H
on

ey
m

yr
tle

1
3

1
0

0
1

1
68

0
52

20
20

Lo
ph

os
te

m
on

 c
on

fe
rtu

s
Br

is
ba

ne
 B

ox
12

1
3

12
1

0
0

12
1

0
13

2
6

29
5

20
20

M
el

al
eu

ca
 q

ui
nq

ue
ne

rv
ia

C
aj

ep
ut

 T
re

e
43

3
3

43
3

0
0

43
3

0
0

0
1

20
20

W
as

hi
ng

to
ni

a 
fil

ife
ra

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 F

an
 P

al
m

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
2

0
5

20
20

Ph
oe

ni
x 

ca
na

rie
ns

is
C

an
ar

y 
Is

la
nd

 D
at

e 
Pa

lm
7

3
7

0
0

7
0

0
0

1
20

20
C

al
od

en
dr

um
 c

ap
en

se
C

ap
e 

C
he

st
nu

t
1

3
1

0
0

1
0

4
0

4
20

20
Pi

tto
sp

or
um

 v
iri

di
flo

ru
m

C
ap

e 
Pi

tto
sp

or
um

8
3

8
0

0
8

4
30

0
14

20
20

C
er

at
on

ia
 s

iliq
ua

C
ar

ob
48

3
48

0
0

48
0

0
0

1
20

20
Ly

on
ot

ha
m

nu
s 

flo
rib

un
du

s
C

at
al

in
a 

Iro
nw

oo
d

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

20
20

C
ed

ru
s 

lib
an

i
C

ed
ar

-o
f-L

eb
an

on
1

3
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

1
20

20
M

ag
no

lia
 c

ha
m

pa
ca

C
ha

m
pa

ca
1

3
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

3
20

20
An

no
na

 c
he

rim
ol

a
C

he
rim

oy
a

3
3

3
0

0
3

0
1

0
8

20
20

R
ad

er
m

ac
he

ra
 s

in
ic

a
C

hi
na

 D
ol

l
9

3
9

0
0

9
0

1
0

0
20

20
M

el
ia

 a
ze

da
ra

ch
C

hi
na

be
rr

y
1

3
1

0
0

1
0

57
0

57
20

20
U

lm
us

 p
ar

vi
fo

lia
C

hi
ne

se
 E

lm
 

11
4

3
11

4
0

0
11

4
0

0
0

10
20

20
Zi

zi
ph

us
 ju

ju
ba

C
hi

ne
se

 J
uj

ub
e

10
3

10
0

0
10

0
0

0
7

20
20

Li
gu

st
ru

m
 s

in
en

se
 

C
hi

ne
se

 P
riv

et
7

3
7

0
0

7
0

1
0

9
20

20
Tr

ia
di

ca
 s

eb
ife

ra
C

hi
ne

se
 T

al
lo

w
 T

re
e

10
3

10
0

0
10

P
ag

e 
1

 o
f 

5

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 3 of 10

mortone
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



La
n

d
sc

ap
e

 D
iv

is
io

n

Th
ir

d
 M

u
tu

al
 T

re
e

s 
b

y 
Tr

im
 C

yc
le

 b
y 

Sp
e

ci
e

s

20
19

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

20
18

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

20
17

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

To
 b

e 
Tr

im
m

ed

*P
la

nn
ed

 
Tr

im
 

(F
is

ca
l 

Ye
ar

)

B
ot

an
ic

al
 N

am
e

C
om

m
on

 N
am

e
Q

ua
nt

ity
A

nn
ua

l 
Tr

im
 

C
yc

le

20
20

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
21

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
22

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
23

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

0
12

0
26

20
20

C
hi

ta
lp

a 
ta

sh
ke

nt
en

si
s

C
hi

ta
lp

a
38

3
38

0
0

38
0

0
0

2
20

20
Er

yt
hr

in
a 

cr
is

ta
-g

al
li

C
oc

ks
pu

r C
or

al
 T

re
e

2
3

2
0

0
2

0
0

0
1

20
20

Fi
cu

s 
m

ic
ro

ca
rp

a
C

ub
an

 L
au

re
l

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
7

20
20

Ph
oe

ni
x 

da
ct

yl
ife

ra
D

at
e 

Pa
lm

7
3

7
0

0
7

0
0

0
1

20
20

C
hi

lo
ps

is
 li

ne
ar

is
D

es
er

t W
illo

w
1

3
1

0
0

1
0

12
4

10
7

20
20

Er
io

bo
try

a 
ja

po
ni

ca
Ed

ib
le

 L
oq

ua
t

12
3

3
12

3
0

0
12

3
1

2
0

28
20

20
Be

tu
la

 p
en

du
la

Eu
ro

pe
an

 W
hi

te
 B

irc
h

31
3

31
0

0
31

2
20

0
3

23
0

20
20

Af
ro

ca
rp

us
 g

ra
ci

lio
r

Fe
rn

 P
in

e
43

5
3

43
5

0
0

43
5

0
0

0
2

20
20

Fi
cu

s 
ly

ra
ta

Fi
dd

le
 L

ea
f F

ig
2

3
2

0
0

2
0

0
0

2
20

20
Py

ra
ca

nt
ha

 c
oc

ci
ne

a
Fi

re
th

or
n

2
3

2
0

0
2

0
0

0
2

20
20

C
ar

yo
ta

 u
re

ns
Fi

sh
ta

il 
W

in
e 

Pa
lm

2
3

2
0

0
2

0
1

0
0

20
20

Br
ac

hy
ch

ito
n 

ac
er

ifo
liu

s
Fl

am
e 

Tr
ee

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
11

4
0

16
3

20
20

M
el

al
eu

ca
 li

na
rii

fo
lia

Fl
ax

le
af

 P
ap

er
ba

rk
27

7
3

27
7

0
0

27
7

0
8

0
10

20
20

C
ei

ba
 s

pe
ci

os
a

Fl
os

s 
Si

lk
 T

re
e

18
3

18
0

0
18

0
0

0
3

20
20

C
er

ci
s 

ca
na

de
ns

is
 'F

or
es

t P
an

sy
'

Fo
xt

ai
l P

al
m

3
3

3
0

0
3

0
0

0
2

20
20

Ko
el

re
ut

er
ia

 p
an

ic
ul

at
a

G
ol

de
nr

ai
n 

Tr
ee

2
3

2
0

0
2

0
3

0
4

20
20

Fr
ax

in
us

 p
en

ns
yl

va
ni

ca
G

re
en

 A
sh

7
3

7
0

0
7

0
0

0
1

20
20

Ac
ac

ia
 d

ec
ur

re
ns

G
re

en
 W

at
tle

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

20
20

Pi
th

ec
el

lo
bi

um
 d

ul
ce

G
ua

m
uc

hi
l

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

20
20

Ps
id

iu
m

 g
ua

ja
va

H
ea

th
 M

el
al

uc
a

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
3

0
1

20
20

R
ob

in
ia

 x
 a

m
bi

gu
a 

'Id
ah

oe
ns

is
'

Id
ah

o 
Lo

cu
st

4
3

4
0

0
4

0
0

0
1

20
20

R
ha

m
nu

s 
al

at
er

nu
s

Ita
lia

n 
Bu

ck
th

or
n

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
4

20
20

Pr
un

us
 s

er
ru

la
ta

Ja
pa

ne
se

 F
lo

w
er

in
g 

C
he

rr
y

4
3

4
0

0
4

0
0

1
15

20
20

Li
gu

st
ru

m
 ja

po
ni

cu
m

Ja
pa

ne
se

 P
riv

et
16

3
16

0
0

16
0

2
0

10
20

20
Er

yt
hr

in
a 

ca
ffr

a
Ka

ffi
rb

oo
m

 C
or

al
 T

re
e

12
3

12
0

0
12

0
8

0
34

20
20

Pl
at

an
us

 x
 a

ce
rif

ol
ia

Lo
nd

on
 P

la
ne

 T
re

e
42

3
42

0
0

42
0

0
1

50
20

20
G

in
kg

o 
bi

lo
ba

M
ai

de
nh

ai
r T

re
e

51
3

51
0

0
51

0
0

0
3

20
20

M
ay

te
nu

s 
bo

ar
ia

M
ay

te
n

3
3

3
0

0
3

0
2

0
20

20
20

C
ha

m
ae

ro
ps

 h
um

ilis
M

ed
ite

rr
an

ea
n 

Fa
n 

Pa
lm

22
3

22
0

0
22

0
0

0
1

20
20

Br
ah

ea
 a

rm
at

a
M

ex
ic

an
 B

lu
e 

Pa
lm

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
8

20
20

M
ag

no
lia

 d
ol

ts
op

a
M

ic
he

lia
8

3
8

0
0

8
0

2
0

27
20

20
Al

bi
zi

a 
ju

lib
ris

si
n

M
im

os
a;

 S
ilk

 T
re

e
29

3
29

0
0

29
0

2
0

3
20

20
Fr

ax
in

us
 v

el
ut

in
a 

'M
od

es
to

'
M

od
es

to
 A

sh
5

3
5

0
0

5
0

4
0

90
20

20
M

yo
po

ru
m

 la
et

um
M

yo
po

ru
m

94
3

94
0

0
94

0
1

0
0

20
20

M
yo

po
ru

m
 la

et
um

M
ys

or
e 

Fi
g

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

20
20

Er
yt

hr
in

a 
am

er
ic

an
a

N
ak

ed
 C

or
al

 T
re

e
1

3
1

0
0

1
0

22
1

29
20

20
O

le
a 

eu
ro

pa
ea

O
liv

e
52

3
52

0
0

52
0

0
0

3
20

20
H

ow
ea

 fo
rs

te
ria

na
Pa

ra
di

se
 P

al
m

3
3

3
0

0
3

0
1

0
9

20
20

M
el

al
eu

ca
 n

es
op

hi
la

Pi
nk

 M
el

al
eu

ca
10

3
10

0
0

10
0

1
2

75
20

20
H

an
dr

oa
nt

hu
s 

im
pe

tig
in

os
us

Pi
nk

 T
ru

m
pe

t T
re

e
78

3
78

0
0

78
0

0
0

1
20

20
Be

au
ca

rn
ea

 re
cu

rv
at

a
Po

ny
ta

il 
Pa

lm
1

3
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

3
20

20
M

el
al

eu
ca

 s
ty

ph
el

io
id

es
Pr

ic
kl

y-
le

af
 P

ap
er

ba
rk

3
3

3
0

0
3

0
2

0
1

20
20

Pa
ul

ow
ni

a 
fo

rtu
ne

i
Pr

in
ce

ss
 T

re
e

3
3

3
0

0
3

0
0

0
2

20
20

D
od

on
ae

a 
vi

sc
os

a 
'P

ur
pu

re
a'

Pu
rp

le
 H

op
se

ed
2

3
2

0
0

2
0

10
0

62
20

20
Ba

uh
in

ia
 v

ar
ie

ga
ta

Pu
rp

le
 O

rc
hi

d 
Tr

ee
72

3
72

0
0

72
0

0
0

11
20

20
R

ob
in

ia
 x

 a
m

bi
gu

a 
'P

ur
pl

e 
R

ob
e'

Pu
rp

le
 R

ob
e 

Lo
cu

st
11

3
11

0
0

11
0

0
0

1
20

20
Sa

lix
 d

is
co

lo
r

Pu
ss

y 
W

illo
w

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

20
20

Br
ac

hy
ch

ito
n 

ru
pe

st
ris

Q
ue

en
sl

an
d 

Bo
ttl

e 
Tr

ee
1

3
1

0
0

1
0

1
0

21
20

20
Sc

he
ffl

er
a 

ac
tin

op
hy

lla
Q

ue
en

sl
an

d 
U

m
br

el
la

 T
re

e
22

3
22

0
0

22
0

1
1

7
20

20
Ta

xo
di

um
 d

is
tic

hu
m

R
ub

be
r P

la
nt

9
3

9
0

0
9

0
0

0
34

20
20

Pi
tto

sp
or

um
 c

ra
ss

ifo
liu

m
 

Se
as

id
e 

Pi
tto

sp
or

um
34

3
34

0
0

34
0

48
0

91
20

20
Fr

ax
in

us
 u

hd
ei

Sh
am

el
 A

sh
13

9
3

13
9

0
0

13
9

0
0

0
1

20
20

U
lm

us
 p

um
ila

Si
be

ria
n 

El
m

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
72

0
17

8
20

20
G

re
vi

lle
a 

ro
bu

st
a

Si
lk

 O
ak

25
0

3
25

0
0

0
25

0
0

0
0

8
20

20
Ps

id
iu

m
 c

at
tle

ia
nu

m
St

ra
w

be
rr

y 
G

ua
va

8
3

8
0

0
8

0
0

0
1

20
20

La
ur

us
 n

ob
ilis

Sw
ee

t B
ay

1
3

1
0

0
1

P
ag

e 
2

 o
f 

5

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 4 of 10



La
n

d
sc

ap
e

 D
iv

is
io

n

Th
ir

d
 M

u
tu

al
 T

re
e

s 
b

y 
Tr

im
 C

yc
le

 b
y 

Sp
e

ci
e

s

20
19

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

20
18

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

20
17

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

To
 b

e 
Tr

im
m

ed

*P
la

nn
ed

 
Tr

im
 

(F
is

ca
l 

Ye
ar

)

B
ot

an
ic

al
 N

am
e

C
om

m
on

 N
am

e
Q

ua
nt

ity
A

nn
ua

l 
Tr

im
 

C
yc

le

20
20

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
21

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
22

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
23

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

0
1

0
1

20
20

H
ym

en
os

po
ru

m
 fl

av
um

Sw
ee

ts
ha

de
2

3
2

0
0

2
0

0
0

2
20

20
G

le
di

ts
ia

 tr
ia

ca
nt

ho
s 

f. 
in

er
m

is
Th

or
nl

es
s 

H
on

ey
 L

oc
us

t
2

3
2

0
0

2
0

0
0

34
20

20
Pi

tto
sp

or
um

 to
bi

ra
To

bi
ra

, M
oc

k 
O

ra
ng

e
34

3
34

0
0

34
0

0
0

2
20

20
Ai

la
nt

hu
s 

al
tis

si
m

a
Tr

ee
 o

f H
ea

ve
n

2
3

2
0

0
2

0
0

0
4

20
20

D
yp

si
s 

de
ca

ry
i

Tr
ia

ng
le

 P
al

m
4

3
4

0
0

4
0

2
1

27
20

20
Pi

tto
sp

or
um

 u
nd

ul
at

um
Vi

ct
or

ia
n 

Bo
x

30
3

30
0

0
30

0
91

0
28

6
20

20
C

al
lis

te
m

on
 v

im
in

al
is

W
ee

pi
ng

 B
ot

tle
br

us
h

37
7

3
37

7
0

0
37

7
0

0
0

1
20

20
M

or
us

 a
lb

a 
'P

en
du

la
'

W
ee

pi
ng

 W
hi

te
 M

ul
be

rr
y

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

20
20

Sa
lix

 b
ab

yl
on

ic
a

W
ee

pi
ng

 W
illo

w
1

3
1

0
0

1
0

3
1

23
20

20
Al

nu
s 

rh
om

bi
fo

lia
W

hi
te

 A
ld

er
27

3
27

0
0

27
0

0
0

2
20

20
Eu

ca
ly

pt
us

 le
uc

ox
yl

on
W

hi
te

 Ir
on

ba
rk

2
3

2
0

0
2

0
0

0
2

20
20

C
as

im
iro

a 
ed

ul
is

W
hi

te
 S

ap
ot

e
2

3
2

0
0

2
0

0
0

1
20

20
Sa

lix
 s

pe
ci

es
W

illo
w

 S
pe

ci
es

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

20
20

H
an

dr
oa

nt
hu

s 
um

be
lla

tu
s

Ye
llo

w
 T

ru
m

pe
t T

re
e

1
3

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

20
20

Ta
xu

s 
sp

ec
ie

s 
Ye

w
 S

pe
ci

es
1

3
1

0
0

1
1

30
0

83
20

20
Li

qu
id

am
ba

r s
ty

ra
ci

flu
a

Am
er

ic
an

 S
w

ee
t G

um
11

4
4

11
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
Py

ru
s 

ca
lle

ry
an

a 
'A

ris
to

cr
at

'
Ar

is
to

cr
at

 P
ea

r
1

4
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
Ac

er
 p

al
m

at
um

 'B
lo

od
go

od
'

Bl
oo

dg
oo

d 
Ja

pa
ne

se
 M

ap
le

1
4

1
0

0
0

0
13

0
60

20
20

Eu
ca

ly
pt

us
 g

lo
bu

lu
s

Bl
ue

 G
um

73
4

73
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

20
20

Ac
ac

ia
 s

al
ig

na
Bl

ue
-L

ea
f W

at
tle

, W
illo

w
 W

at
tle

4
4

4
0

0
0

0
19

0
26

20
20

Eu
ca

ly
pt

us
 le

hm
an

ni
i

Bu
sh

y 
Ya

te
45

4
45

0
0

0
0

91
11

39
5

20
20

Pi
nu

s 
ca

na
rie

ns
is

C
an

ar
y 

Is
la

nd
 P

in
e

49
7

4
49

7
0

0
0

0
5

1
52

20
20

Pr
un

us
 c

ar
ol

in
ia

na
C

ar
ol

in
a 

La
ur

el
 C

he
rr

y
58

4
58

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
20

20
M

an
ih

ot
 e

sc
ul

en
ta

C
as

sa
va

2
4

2
0

0
0

0
3

0
23

20
20

Eu
ca

ly
pt

us
 g

lo
bu

lu
s 

'C
om

pa
ct

a'
 

C
om

pa
ct

 B
lu

eg
um

26
4

26
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

20
20

Eu
ca

ly
pt

us
 to

rq
ua

ta
C

or
al

 G
um

2
4

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

20
20

Po
pu

lu
s 

de
lto

id
es

C
ot

to
nw

oo
d

2
4

2
0

0
0

0
6

0
25

20
20

Eu
ca

ly
pt

us
 ru

di
s

D
es

er
t G

um
31

4
31

0
0

0
0

3
0

1
20

20
H

ib
is

cu
s 

m
ut

ab
ilis

 'F
lo

re
 P

le
no

'
D

ou
bl

e 
C

on
fe

de
ra

te
 R

os
e

4
4

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

20
20

D
ra

ca
en

a 
dr

ac
o

D
ra

go
n 

Tr
ee

1
4

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

20
20

C
at

al
pa

 b
ig

no
ni

oi
de

s
Ea

st
er

n 
C

at
al

pa
1

4
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
Q

ue
rc

us
 il

ex
H

ol
ly

 O
ak

1
4

1
0

0
0

1
21

0
92

20
20

Pi
nu

s 
pi

ne
a

Ita
lia

n 
St

on
e 

Pi
ne

11
4

4
11

4
0

0
0

0
50

1
61

6
20

20
C

al
lis

te
m

on
 c

itr
in

us
Le

m
on

 B
ot

tle
br

us
h

66
7

4
66

7
0

0
0

0
37

0
13

2
20

20
C

or
ym

bi
a 

ci
tri

od
or

a
Le

m
on

-S
ce

nt
ed

 G
um

16
9

4
16

9
0

0
0

0
10

0
31

20
20

Eu
ca

ly
pt

us
 v

im
in

al
is

M
an

na
 G

um
41

4
41

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
Ta

xo
di

um
 m

uc
ro

na
tu

m
M

on
te

zu
m

a 
C

yp
re

ss
1

4
1

0
0

0
0

1
0

21
20

20
Le

pt
os

pe
rm

um
 s

co
pa

riu
m

N
ic

ho
l's

 W
illo

w
-L

ea
fe

d 
Pe

pp
er

m
in

t
22

4
22

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
20

20
Pl

at
yc

la
du

s 
or

ie
nt

al
is

O
rie

nt
al

 A
rb

or
vi

ta
e

6
4

6
0

0
0

0
1

0
16

20
20

Py
ru

s 
ca

lle
ry

an
a

O
rn

am
en

ta
l P

ea
r

17
4

17
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

20
20

Bu
tia

 c
ap

ita
ta

Pi
nd

o 
Pa

lm
4

4
4

0
0

0
0

1
8

48
20

20
Br

ac
hy

ch
ito

n 
di

sc
ol

or
Pi

nk
 F

la
m

e 
Tr

ee
57

4
57

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
20

20
C

al
lia

nd
ra

 h
ae

m
at

oc
ep

ha
la

Pi
nk

 P
ow

de
rp

uf
f

2
4

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

20
20

C
ot

on
ea

st
er

 la
ct

eu
s

R
ed

 C
lu

st
er

be
rr

y
8

4
8

0
0

0
0

5
0

24
20

20
Eu

ca
ly

pt
us

 c
am

al
du

le
ns

is
R

ed
 G

um
29

4
29

0
0

0
1

14
9

0
11

0
20

20
Eu

ca
ly

pt
us

 s
id

er
ox

yl
on

R
ed

 Ir
on

ba
rk

26
0

4
26

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

20
20

C
as

ua
rin

a 
cu

nn
in

gh
am

ia
na

R
iv

er
 S

he
-O

ak
1

4
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
20

20
H

ow
ea

 b
el

m
or

ea
na

Se
nt

ry
 P

al
m

2
4

2
0

0
0

1
15

7
0

13
0

20
20

Eu
ca

ly
pt

us
 p

ol
ya

nt
he

m
os

Si
lv

er
 D

ol
la

r G
um

28
8

4
28

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

20
20

Ac
er

 s
ac

ch
ar

in
um

Si
lv

er
 M

ap
le

1
4

1
0

0
0

0
2

0
0

20
20

Eu
ca

ly
pt

us
 p

ul
ve

ru
le

nt
a

Si
lv

er
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

G
um

2
4

2
0

0
0

0
1

0
5

20
20

M
ac

ad
am

ia
 in

te
gr

ifo
lia

Sm
oo

th
-S

he
ll 

M
ac

ad
am

ia
6

4
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

9
20

20
C

oc
cu

lu
s 

la
ur

ifo
liu

s
Sn

ai
ls

ee
d

9
4

9
0

0
0

0
14

0
50

20
20

C
or

ym
bi

a 
m

ac
ul

at
a

Sp
ot

te
d 

G
um

64
4

64
0

0
0

0
2

0
11

20
20

Ar
bu

tu
s 

un
ed

o
St

ra
w

be
rr

y 
Tr

ee
13

4
13

0
0

0
2

12
1

17
20

20
Eu

ca
ly

pt
us

 c
la

do
ca

ly
x

Su
ga

r G
um

32
4

32
0

0
0

P
ag

e 
3

 o
f 

5

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 5 of 10



La
n

d
sc

ap
e

 D
iv

is
io

n

Th
ir

d
 M

u
tu

al
 T

re
e

s 
b

y 
Tr

im
 C

yc
le

 b
y 

Sp
e

ci
e

s

20
19

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

20
18

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

20
17

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

To
 b

e 
Tr

im
m

ed

*P
la

nn
ed

 
Tr

im
 

(F
is

ca
l 

Ye
ar

)

B
ot

an
ic

al
 N

am
e

C
om

m
on

 N
am

e
Q

ua
nt

ity
A

nn
ua

l 
Tr

im
 

C
yc

le

20
20

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
21

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
22

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
23

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

0
0

0
1

20
20

H
et

er
om

el
es

 a
rb

ut
ifo

lia
To

yo
n

1
4

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

20
20

Sc
he

ffl
er

a 
pu

ec
kl

er
i

Va
lle

y 
O

ak
2

4
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
Tr

is
ta

ni
op

si
s 

la
ur

in
a

W
ee

pi
ng

 B
lu

e 
At

la
s 

C
ed

ar
1

4
1

0
0

0
0

2
1

11
4

20
20

Ile
x 

al
ta

cl
ar

en
si

s 
'W

ils
on

ii'
W

ils
on

 H
ol

ly
11

7
4

11
7

0
0

0
0

12
3

16
20

20
Tr

ac
hy

ca
rp

us
 fo

rtu
ne

i
W

in
dm

ill 
Pa

lm
31

4
31

0
0

0
0

1
0

6
20

20
Pi

nu
s 

br
ut

ia
 v

ar
. e

ld
ar

ic
a

Af
gh

an
 P

in
e

7
5

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

20
20

C
un

on
ia

 c
ap

en
si

s
Af

ric
an

 R
ed

 A
ld

er
7

5
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
20

20
Th

uj
a 

oc
ci

de
nt

al
is

Am
er

ic
an

 A
rb

or
vi

ta
e

2
5

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

20
20

Br
ug

m
an

si
a 

ve
rs

ic
ol

or
An

ge
l's

 T
ru

m
pe

t
1

5
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
D

yp
si

s 
lu

te
sc

en
s

Ar
ec

a 
Pa

lm
1

5
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
Ta

m
ar

ix
 a

ph
yl

la
At

he
l T

re
e

1
5

1
0

0
0

0
1

0
14

20
20

C
ed

ru
s 

at
la

nt
ic

a
At

la
s 

C
ed

ar
15

5
15

0
0

0
0

0
0

10
20

20
Le

pt
os

pe
rm

um
 la

ev
ig

at
um

Au
st

ra
lia

n 
Te

a 
Tr

ee
10

5
10

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
20

20
H

yo
ph

or
be

 la
ge

ni
ca

ul
is

Bo
ttl

e 
Pa

lm
11

5
11

0
0

0
0

9
0

49
20

20
Er

io
bo

try
a 

de
fle

xa
Br

on
ze

 L
oq

ua
t

58
5

58
0

0
0

0
4

0
46

20
20

Sy
zy

gi
um

 p
an

ic
ul

at
um

Br
us

h 
C

he
rr

y
50

5
50

0
0

0
0

11
0

3
14

9
20

20
C

in
na

m
om

um
 c

am
ph

or
a

C
am

ph
or

 
26

2
5

26
2

0
0

0
1

15
2

13
5

20
20

Pr
un

us
 ly

on
ii

C
at

al
in

a 
C

he
rr

y
15

3
5

15
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
20

20
Ile

x 
co

rn
ut

a 
   

   
   

 
C

hi
ne

se
 H

ol
ly

2
5

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
17

20
20

Ju
ni

pe
ru

s 
ch

in
en

si
s

C
hi

ne
se

 J
un

ip
er

17
5

17
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

20
20

Ph
ot

in
ia

 s
er

ra
tif

ol
ia

C
hi

ne
se

 P
ho

tin
ia

1
5

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

20
20

Ph
ot

in
ia

 s
er

ru
la

ta
C

hi
ne

se
 P

ho
tin

ia
1

5
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
W

is
te

ria
 s

in
en

si
s 

(S
ta

nd
ar

d)
C

hi
ne

se
 W

is
te

ria
 (S

ta
nd

ar
d)

1
5

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

20
20

Ph
oe

ni
x 

ru
pi

co
la

C
lif

f D
at

e 
Pa

lm
1

5
1

0
0

0
0

2
0

17
20

20
Q

ue
rc

us
 a

gr
ifo

lia
C

oa
st

 L
iv

e 
O

ak
19

5
19

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
Se

qu
oi

a 
se

m
pe

rv
ire

ns
C

oa
st

 R
ed

w
oo

d
1

5
1

0
0

0
1

47
6

68
6

20
20

La
ge

rs
tro

em
ia

 in
di

ca
C

ra
pe

 M
yr

tle
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 h
yb

rid
s)

74
0

5
74

0
0

0
0

0
2

0
5

20
20

C
ed

ru
s 

de
od

ar
a

D
eo

da
r C

ed
ar

7
5

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

20
20

Sc
he

ffl
er

a 
ar

bo
ric

ol
a

D
w

ar
f S

ch
ef

fle
ra

1
5

1
0

0
0

0
2

0
61

20
20

C
er

ci
s 

ca
na

de
ns

is
Ea

st
er

n 
R

ed
bu

d
63

5
63

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
20

20
Ile

x 
aq

ui
fo

liu
m

En
gl

is
h 

H
ol

ly
6

5
6

0
0

0
0

67
0

56
20

20
Py

ru
s 

ka
w

ak
am

ii
Ev

er
gr

ee
n 

Pe
ar

12
3

5
12

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
28

20
20

C
er

ci
s 

ca
na

de
ns

is
 'F

or
es

t P
an

sy
'

Fo
re

st
 P

an
sy

 R
ed

bu
d

28
5

28
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

20
20

Ph
ot

in
ia

 fr
as

er
i

Fr
as

er
 P

ho
tin

ia
13

5
13

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
20

20
Li

gu
st

ru
m

 lu
ci

du
m

G
lo

ss
y 

Pr
iv

et
22

5
22

0
0

0
0

1
0

17
20

20
D

od
on

ae
a 

vi
sc

os
a

G
re

en
 H

op
se

ed
18

5
18

0
0

0
0

17
15

27
5

20
20

Ju
ni

pe
ru

s 
ch

in
en

si
s 

'T
or

ul
os

a'
H

ol
ly

w
oo

d 
Ju

ni
pe

r
30

7
5

30
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
20

20
C

al
oc

ed
ru

s 
de

cu
rr

en
s

In
ce

ns
e 

C
ed

ar
7

5
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

27
20

20
C

up
re

ss
us

 s
em

pe
rv

ire
ns

Ita
lia

n 
C

yp
re

ss
27

5
27

0
0

0
0

3
0

44
20

20
Pi

nu
s 

th
un

be
rg

ia
na

Ja
pa

ne
se

 B
la

ck
 P

in
e

47
5

47
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

20
20

Ac
er

 p
al

m
at

um
Ja

pa
ne

se
 M

ap
le

8
5

8
0

0
0

0
0

5
48

20
20

Ju
ni

pe
ru

s 
sp

ec
ie

s
Ju

ni
pe

r S
pe

ci
es

53
5

53
0

0
0

0
0

1
17

20
20

C
up

re
ss

oc
yp

ar
is

 le
yl

an
di

i
Le

yl
an

d 
C

yp
re

ss
18

5
18

0
0

0
0

3
3

12
1

20
20

M
ag

no
lia

 g
ra

nd
ifl

or
a 

'L
itt

le
 G

em
'

Li
ttl

e 
G

em
 M

ag
no

lia
12

7
5

12
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

87
20

20
Po

do
ca

rp
us

 h
en

ke
lii

Lo
ng

-L
ea

fe
d 

Ye
llo

w
w

oo
d

87
5

87
0

0
0

0
19

0
50

20
20

Pi
nu

s 
ra

di
at

a
M

on
te

re
y 

Pi
ne

69
5

69
0

0
0

0
37

2
15

2
20

20
M

et
ro

si
de

ro
s 

ex
ce

ls
a

N
ew

 Z
ea

la
nd

 C
hr

is
tm

as
 T

re
e

19
1

5
19

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

20
20

Le
pt

os
pe

rm
um

 s
co

pa
riu

m
N

ew
 Z

ea
la

nd
 T

ea
 T

re
e

1
5

1
0

0
0

0
1

1
15

20
20

Ar
au

ca
ria

 h
et

er
op

hy
lla

N
or

fo
lk

 Is
la

nd
 P

in
e

17
5

17
0

0
0

0
1

0
6

20
20

O
th

er
 T

re
e

O
th

er
 T

re
e

7
5

7
0

0
0

0
2

0
12

3
20

20
Pr

un
us

 c
er

as
ife

ra
Pu

rp
le

-L
ea

fe
d 

Pl
um

12
5

5
12

5
0

0
0

0
2

0
13

20
20

Au
ra

nt
ic

ar
pa

 rh
om

bi
fo

lia
Q

ue
en

sl
an

d 
Pi

tto
sp

or
um

15
5

15
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

20
20

M
ag

no
lia

 x
 s

ou
la

ng
ea

na
Sa

uc
er

 M
ag

no
lia

4
5

4
0

0
0

0
4

0
48

20
20

Xy
lo

sm
a 

co
ng

es
tu

m
Sh

in
y 

Xy
lo

sm
a

52
5

52
0

0
0

0
0

0
18

20
20

C
ot

in
us

 c
og

gy
gr

ia
Sm

ok
e 

Tr
ee

18
5

18
0

0
0

0
78

1
35

3
20

20
M

ag
no

lia
 g

ra
nd

ifl
or

a
So

ut
he

rn
 M

ag
no

lia
43

2
5

43
2

0
0

0

P
ag

e 
4

 o
f 

5

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 6 of 10



La
n

d
sc

ap
e

 D
iv

is
io

n

Th
ir

d
 M

u
tu

al
 T

re
e

s 
b

y 
Tr

im
 C

yc
le

 b
y 

Sp
e

ci
e

s

20
19

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

20
18

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

20
17

 
La

st
 

Tr
im

To
 b

e 
Tr

im
m

ed

*P
la

nn
ed

 
Tr

im
 

(F
is

ca
l 

Ye
ar

)

B
ot

an
ic

al
 N

am
e

C
om

m
on

 N
am

e
Q

ua
nt

ity
A

nn
ua

l 
Tr

im
 

C
yc

le

20
20

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
21

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
22

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

20
23

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

N
ex

t T
rim

0
0

2
36

20
20

Yu
cc

a 
gl

or
io

sa
Sp

an
is

h 
D

ag
ge

r
38

5
38

0
0

0
0

6
4

11
0

20
20

Ar
au

ca
ria

 c
ol

um
na

ris
St

ar
 P

in
e

12
0

5
12

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
17

20
20

Ac
ac

ia
 lo

ng
ifo

lia
Sy

dn
ey

 G
ol

de
n 

W
at

tle
18

5
18

0
0

0
0

1
1

50
20

20
C

er
ci

s 
ca

na
de

ns
is

 v
ar

. t
ex

en
si

s 
Te

xa
s/

O
kl

ah
om

a 
R

ed
bu

d
52

5
52

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
20

20
Ar

al
ia

 e
le

ga
nt

is
si

m
a

Th
re

ad
le

af
 A

ra
lia

1
5

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
2

20
20

Sc
he

ffl
er

a 
pu

ec
kl

er
i

Tu
pi

da
nt

hu
s

3
5

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
52

20
20

Tr
is

ta
ni

op
si

s 
la

ur
in

a
W

at
er

 G
um

52
5

52
0

0
0

0
0

0
3

20
20

C
er

ci
s 

oc
ci

de
nt

al
is

W
es

te
rn

 R
ed

bu
d

3
5

3
0

0
0

0
3

0
7

20
20

Po
do

ca
rp

us
 m

ac
ro

ph
yl

lu
s

Ye
w

 P
in

e
10

5
10

0
0

0
20

3,
26

2
11

4
9,

25
0

To
ta

ls
 w

ith
ou

t P
al

m
 T

re
es

:
13

,1
82

13
,1

82
0

2,
52

9
3,

73
6

12
6

3,
55

7
13

3
10

,1
44

To
ta

l w
ith

 P
al

m
 T

re
es

:
13

,9
60

13
,9

60
36

9
2,

89
8

4,
10

5 P
ag

e 
5

 o
f 

5

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 7 of 10



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 8 of 10



RESOLUTION 03‐20‐XXX 

Species‐Based Tree Trimming Policy 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors recognizes that many policies and services have 
been implemented by way of practice over the years but not formally documented;  

WHEREAS, the current tree trimming schedule is based on an inspection based 
rotation in which trees are inspected every 34 months to determine the necessity of 
trimming on an individual tree basis; 

WHEREAS, some tree species require trimming more frequently than every 34 months 
and some less frequently, which has led to inefficiencies and an increased amount of 
service requests and storm damage; 

WHEREAS, Third Mutual maintains over 12,000 trees with 224 different species, each 
having different growth rates; 

WHEREAS, Staff has determined that using a species basis to determine the tree 
trimming schedule would reduce the inefficiencies and service request trims; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, January 21, 2020, that the Board of 
Directors hereby adopts the species-based trimming cycles attached to the 
official meeting minutes; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the corporation to carry out this resolution as written.  

DECEMBER Initial Notification
28-day notification for member review and comment to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been 
satisfied. 

Agenda Item # 12a
Page 9 of 10

mortone
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 10 of 10



d 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: December 2, 2019 

FOR:  Resident Policies and Compliance Task Force 

SUBJECT: Internal Dispute Resolution  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends revising the Internal Dispute Resolution to include a time frame to complete 
the matter. 

BACKGROUND  

On September 8, 2015, the Board adopted an Internal Dispute Resolution to meet 
requirements that align with Civil Code §4360 (Resolution 03-15-86).  

DISCUSSION  

The current policy provides a process and procedure for addressing Internal 
Dispute Resolution requests from owners. However, there is no resolution timeline set in 
the current policy. The proposed revision includes a time frame of two (2) months for a 
resolution.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

There is no financial impact.   

Prepared By: Blessilda Wright, Compliance Supervisor 

Reviewed By: Francis Gomez, Operations Manager 
Tim Moy, Chief of Security 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Proposed Amended Internal Dispute Resolution 
Attachment 2: Resolution  

Agenda Item # 12b
Page 1 of 6



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Resident Policy And Compliance Task Force 
December 2, 2019 

ENDORSEMENT (to Board) 

Discuss & Consider the Internal Dispute Resolution 

On September 8, 2015, the Board adopted an Internal Dispute Resolution to meet requirements that 
align with Civil Code §4360 (Resolution 03-15-86). 

The current policy provides a process and procedure for addressing Internal Dispute Resolution 
requests from owners. However, there is no timeline set in the current policy. The proposed revision 
includes a time frame of two (2) months for a resolution. 

Director McCary made a motion to approve the Internal Dispute Resolution. Director Parsons 
seconded the motion.  

By unanimous vote, the motion carried. 

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 2 of 6



Internal Dispute Resolution Resolution 03-20-XX; 
Adopted January 21, 2020 

The Internal Dispute Resolution (“IDR”) process provides Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
(“Third”) as well as all Owners an alternative to the filing of any litigation related to a 
dispute involving their respective rights, duties or liabilities under the governing 
documents, the Davis-Stirling Common Interest Development Act; and/or the nonprofit 
mutual benefit corporation law; or any other state or federal law (a “CID Dispute”). An
owner should be permitted to request IDR for a disputed assessment or charge (not a 
delinquency or a request for a payment plan.) The IDR process is available not only to 
disputes between Third and an Owner, but can also be used to help resolve disputes 
between Owners. It does not relate to any collection of assessments unless Third 
determines it needs to pursue litigation to collect same. 

1. Either party (Third or an Owner) to a CID Dispute may invoke the following
procedure:

a. The party may request the other party to meet and confer, in an effort to
resolve the CID Dispute. The request shall be in writing.

b. An Owner may refuse a request to meet and confer. Third may not refuse an
Owner’s request to meet and confer.

c. In response to a CID Dispute involving Third, the Board will designate two
Directors (“Board Designees”) to represent Third and meet and confer with
the Owner. The Board Designees shall also have the right to request the
Chairperson of any applicable Committee involved in the CID Dispute to
assist Third and attend the meet and confer session with the Owner.

d. IDR meetings between Owners and not involving Third should be held at a
“neutral” location. To the extent conference rooms are available, and if the
requesting Owners provide a minimum of ten (10) business days’ advance
written notice, Third will provide a conference room in the Laguna Woods
Village Community Center for the purpose of the IDR meeting. IDR meetings
involving Third will be held in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.

e. IDR meetings will be one hour in length. By requesting or agreeing to
participate in IDR, the parties agree to commit one hour to the effort to
resolve the dispute.

2. An Owner participating in IDR may be assisted by an attorney or another person in
explaining their positions at the Owner’s cost, as also Third may be so assisted at
Third’s cost. Although an Owner is permitted to bring Owner’s attorney or other
representative to the IDR meeting, Third encourages direct discussions between
Third representative and the Owner, without legal counsel, to further the goal of
resolution through an amicable, no cost, and expeditious process.

3. If an Owner desires to bring Owner’s attorney to the IDR meeting, the Owner shall
give ten (10) business days’ advance written notice to the other parties, including
Third, so that the other parties may determine if they wish their respective legal

Agenda Item # 12b
Page 3 of 6



Internal Dispute Resolution 
Resolution 03-20-XX; Adopted [Date] 
Page 2 of 2 

counsel to attend. Failure of Owner to advise if Owner is bringing legal counsel will 
require a postponement of the IDR meeting to a date at which Third counsel or the 
counsel of any other party is able to participate. If an Owner appears at the IDR 
meeting with previously unannounced counsel, the IDR will be rescheduled and will 
not proceed. 

4. In an IDR meeting, the parties will meet promptly at a mutually convenient time and
place, explain their positions to each other and confer in good faith in an effort to
resolve the CID Dispute. If all parties to the IDR are not present, and no one has
called to indicate a problem with arrival, the IDR will be cancelled after 15 minutes of
waiting.

5. A resolution of the CID Dispute agreed to by the parties shall be memorialized in
writing and signed by all participating parties, including, if Third is involved, the
Board Designees on behalf of Third.

6. The Agreement reached by the Owners or the Owners and the Board Designees will
bind the parties and be judicially enforceable if the following conditions are satisfied.

a. The Agreement is in writing and signed by all parties to the IDR process;
b. The Agreement is not in conflict with law or the governing documents; and
c. If the IDR involves Third as a participant, the Agreement is consistent with the

authority granted in advance to the Board Designees by the Board or is
ratified by the Board of Directors within thirty (30) days of the date that the
Agreement is executed by the Owner and the Board Designees.

7. The Owner participating in the IDR Process shall not be charged a fee to participate
in the IDR Process.

8. All parties participating in the IDR process should note that the goal of the meeting is
not to determine who is right or who is wrong, nor does IDR determine a “winner.”
The purpose of the IDR meeting is to try to find a compromise between the disputing
parties, and thereby enhance neighborliness and harmony. Therefore, parties
participating should come to the IDR meeting with an open mind and prepared to be
flexible in dealing with other parties to the IDR.

9. Resolution must be reached within two (2) months from the IDR request.

Agenda Item # 12b
Page 4 of 6



RESOLUTION 03-20-XXX 
Internal Dispute Resolution  

WHEREAS, Civil Code §5910 establishes requirements for Internal Dispute
Resolution meetings; and

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes the need to revise the Internal Dispute
Resolution to include a time frame for reaching a resolution; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED; January 21, 2020, that the Board of 
Directors of this Corporation hereby approves the revised Internal Dispute 
Resolution, as attached to the official minutes of this meeting; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 03-15-85 adopted June 16, 2015 is
hereby superseded in its entirety and cancelled;

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this
resolution.

DECEMBER Initial Notification
28-day review for member review and comment to comply with Civil Code §4360 
has been satisfied. 

Agenda Item # 12b
Page 5 of 6



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 12b
Page 6 of 6



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: January 21, 2020 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Transfer of Funds to Discretionary Investments 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Finance Committee recommends transferring $8,000,000 in cash from funds held at Bank 
of America to the discretionary investment account held and managed by Fidelity/SageView.  

BACKGROUND 

Third Laguna Hills Mutual investments are governed by a board-adopted Investment Policy, in 
which they are categorized as either Non-Discretionary or Discretionary Investments: 

Non-Discretionary Investments are funds administered by the Managing Agent.  
These funds are intended to cover short-term obligations of the mutual but are invested 
to provide protection and interest earnings.  Treasury bills or notes are purchased using 
the Bank of America treasury desk with trades initiated by the Controller and CFO. 
Funds are laddered to mature in months when the monies are needed.  The term non-
discretionary reflects policy restrictions that these investments are held to maturity 
unless otherwise directed by the Board.   

Discretionary Investments are funds administered by an authorized investment 
manager.  This investment policy gives the investment manager discretion to transact 
purchases and sales of investments consistent with provisions in the investment policy, 
including government-backed securities, government sponsored federal agencies, and 
investment grade corporate bonds.  The balances maintained in the discretionary 
investment account are intended to fund long-term obligations of the mutual and have 
the potential for higher interest earnings. 

Third Mutual opened an account with Merrill Lynch (ML) in 1999 by transferring treasuries with 
an initial balance close to $2 Million.  Over the years, periodic transfers have been made to 
shift funds from the non-discretionary account to the discretionary account to achieve higher 
returns.  Historical transfer activity has included: 

1999 $2,000,000 treasury securities transferred to ML account 
2001 $1,000,000 treasury securities transferred to ML account 
2004 $460,000 wired out of ML account 
2010 $5,000,000 treasury securities transferred to ML account 
2015 $2,000,000 cash transferred to ML account 
2019 All holdings transferred to Fidelity/SageView, liquidated, and reinvested 

At the Third Finance Meeting on January 7, 2020, the committee recommended the Board 
approve a transfer of $8 Million cash to the Fidelity account. Agenda Item # 13a

Page 1 of 3



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Transfer to Discretionary Investments 
January 21, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 
DISCUSSION 

As shown in the table below, Third Mutual has maintained a non-discretionary investment 
account balance ranging from a low of $6.9 million to its current high of $15.9 million over the 
past two years, far exceeding the needs for short-term operating cash.  Transfers to the 
discretionary account have been delayed while the investment task force evaluated and the 
board adopted a new investment manager and strategy.  
 
After evaluating forecasted expenditures, Staff recommends a transfer of $8,000,000 cash to 
the discretionary account held by Fidelity and managed by SageView, building a higher 
investment balance in the newly formed index funds portfolio with potentially higher returns. 

 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

An additional $8,000,000 invested by SageView may potentially earn 1% more than treasury 
bills, estimated at $7,000 per month in revenue. 
 
 
Prepared By:  Steve Hormuth, Controller 
     
Reviewed By:  Betty Parker, Chief Financial Officer 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

Attachment 1:                   Resolution 
 

 -
 2,000,000
 4,000,000
 6,000,000
 8,000,000

 10,000,000
 12,000,000
 14,000,000
 16,000,000
 18,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2018

2019

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 2 of 3



RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 

Transfer of Funds to Discretionary Investments 

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to maximize interest earnings on 
invested cash balances. 

RESOLVED, January 21, 2020 that the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby authorizes the transfer of $8,000,000 in cash from 
funds held at Bank of America to the discretionary investment account 
held and managed by Fidelity/SageView; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the corporation to carry out this 
resolution. 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 3 of 3



this page intentionally left blank



1/14/2020

1

1

Financial Report
As of November 30, 2019

INCOME STATEMENT
(in Thousands)

ACTUAL

Assessment Revenue $29,541

Non-assessment Revenue $2,544

Total Revenue $32,085

Total Expense $30,131

Net Revenue/(Expense) $1,954

2

Financial Report
As of November 30, 2019

OPERATING ONLY

INCOME STATEMENT
(in Thousands)

ACTUAL

Assessment Revenue $17,203

Non-assessment Revenue1 $1,606

Total Revenue $18,809

Total Expense2 $18,902

Operating Deficit ($93)

1) excludes unrealized gain
2) excludes depreciation

Agenda Item # 14a(1)
Page 1 of 9



1/14/2020

2

3

Financial Report
As of November 30, 2019

INCOME STATEMENT

(in Thousands)
ACTUAL BUDGET

VARIANCE

B/(W)

Assessment Revenue $29,541 $29,541 $0

Non-assessment Revenue $2,544 $1,529 $1,015

Total Revenue $32,085 $31,070 $1,015

Total Expense $30,131 $31,857 $1,726

Net Revenue/(Expense) $1,954 ($787) $2,741

4

Financial Report
As of November 30, 2019

($308K)

$1,790K

$422K

$333K

$290K

$266K

$156K

Outside Services

Fees and Charges

Unrealized Gain on Investments

Employee Compensation & Related

Interest Income

Materials and Supplies

Legal Fees

Unfavorable Favorable

Agenda Item # 14a(1) 
Page 2 of 9



1/14/2020

3

5

Financial Report
As of November 30, 2019

Total Non Assessment Revenues $2,543,589

Fees & Charges to 
Residents
34%

Interest Income
24%

Unrealized Gain(Loss)
13%

Lease Processing Fee ‐
Third
9%

Laundry
8%

Resale Processing Fee ‐
Third
6%

Miscellaneous Revenue
4%

Golf Cart Electric Fee
2%

6

Financial Report
As of November 30, 2019

Total Expenses $30,131,378

Employee Comp. & 
Related
39%

Outside Services
28%

Utilities and 
Telephones
16%

Materials and 
Supplies
4%

Insurance
4%

Net Allocation to 
Mutuals
4%

Other
3%

Legal Fees
2%

Agenda Item # 14a(1)
Page 3 of 9



1/14/2020

4

7

Financial Report
As of November 30, 2019

NON OPERATING FUND 

BALANCES
(in Thousands)

Replacement 

Funds*

Disaster 

Fund

Unappropriated

Expenditures 

Fund

Garden Villa 

Fund
TOTAL

Beginning Balances: 1/1/19 $16,769 $9,217 $3,213 $61 $29,260

Contributions & Interest 10,216 2,046 603 77 12,942

Expenditures 9,160 1,665 202 71 11,098

Current Balances: 11/30/19 $17,825 $9,598 $3,614 $67 $31,104

* Includes Elevator and Laundry Funds

8

Financial Report
As of November 30, 2019

FUND BALANCES – Third Mutual

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Garden Villa Recreation Room
Fund

Unappropriated Expenditures
Fund

Disaster Fund

Replacement Funds

Agenda Item # 14a(1) 
Page 4 of 9



1/14/2020

5

9

Financial Report
As of November 30, 2019

RESALE HISTORY – Third Mutual

0

10

20

30

40

50

60
# Units

Agenda Item # 14a(1)
Page 5 of 9



CURRENT MONTH

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
PRIOR YEAR

ACTUAL
ANNUAL
BUDGET

Revenues:
Assessments:

1 Operating $1,564 $1,564 $17,203 $17,203 $17,306 $18,767
2 Additions to restricted funds 1,122 1,122 12,338 12,338 12,058 13,460

3 Total assessments 2,686 2,686 29,541 29,541 29,364 32,227

Non-assessment revenues:
4 Fees and charges for services to residents 157 40 118 860 438 422 603 478
5 Laundry 21 18 3 192 202 (9) 122 220
6 Interest income 53 31 23 604 338 266 444 369
7 Unrealized gain/(loss) on AFS investments 333 333
8 Miscellaneous 46 50 (4) 554 551 3 597 601

9 Total non-assessment revenue 278 139 139 2,544 1,529 1,015 1,767 1,668

10 Total revenue 2,963 2,824 139 32,085 31,070 1,015 31,131 33,895

Expenses:
11 Employee compensation and related 1,010 1,074 64 11,695 11,985 290 12,055 13,088
12 Materials and supplies 82 129 47 1,268 1,424 156 1,235 1,554
13 Cost of goods sold 13 (13) 13 (13)
14 Utilities and telephone 440 439 4,908 4,886 (22) 5,099 5,299
15 Legal fees 93 18 (74) 510 202 (308) 314 220
16 Professional fees 2 12 10 156 174 18 112 185
17 Equipment rental 3 3 26 37 11 19 40
18 Outside services 1,054 914 (140) 8,267 10,057 1,790 7,017 10,972
19 Repairs and maintenance 32 28 (4) 324 317 (8) 298 345
20 Other Operating Expense 24 15 (10) 145 166 21 136 181
21 Insurance 176 109 (66) 1,336 1,203 (133) 1,158 1,313
22 Investment expense 4 4 34 42 8 42 46
23 Uncollectible Accounts (7) 12 19 160 127 (34) 57 138
24 (Gain)/loss on sale or trade 3 (3) 1
25 Depreciation and amortization 12 12 131 131 134 143
26 Net allocation to mutuals 115 104 (11) 1,155 1,105 (49) 1,112 1,205

27 Total expenses 3,049 2,874 (175) 30,131 31,857 1,726 28,787 34,730

28 Excess of revenues over expenses ($86) ($50) ($36) $1,954 ($787) $2,741 $2,344 ($835)

Third Laguna Hills Mutual
Statement of Revenues & Expenses - Preliminary

11/30/2019
($ IN THOUSANDS)

Agenda Item # 14a(1)
Page 6 of 9



Statement of Revenues & Expenses - Preliminary 
Variance Explanations as of November 30, 2019 

SUMMARY 

For the year-to-date period ending November 30, 2019, Third Mutual was better than 
budget by $2.7 million, of which $2.4 million resulted from timing of reserve programs 
performed by outside contractors (lighting, landscape modification) and contingencies not 
required (building structures). The remaining $0.3 million is primarily attributed to an 
unrealized gain on available for sale investments. Explanations for categories with 
significant variances are found below. 

REVENUE 

Fees and Charges for Services to Residents – $422K Line 4 
An increase in chargeable services requested, particularly in Maintenance & Construction, 
resulted in a large favorable variance. This was due to an expanded list of non-emergency 
chargeable maintenance services, including water heater replacements, approved by the 
board in September 2018; offsetting expenses are included in compensation and 
materials, below. The variance was furthered by an increase in chargeable maintenance 
work being requested by residents for moisture intrusion events; offsetting expenses are 
included in outside services. Also contributing was an increase for Mutual Consent 
Processing Fees (demolition) at the beginning of the year to offset administrative costs 
associated with processing requests. 

Interest Income - $266K Line 6 
Favorable variance resulted from higher reserve balances than anticipated at the time of 
budget preparation, yielding more interest income. 

Unrealized gain/(loss) on AFS investments - $333K Line 7 
Favorable variance resulted from reporting of Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Available for Sale 
Investments at quarter ending September 30, 2019. Unrealized Gain reflects favorable 
investment market conditions, which fluctuate.  

EXPENSES 

Employee Compensation and Related – $290K Line 11 
Favorable variances in compensation are due to vacancies in Resident Services, 
Landscape Services and Maintenance & Construction along with lower than anticipated 
union medical costs. Favorable variance was furthered in Carpentry due to upgraded 
methodology in dry rot remediation and better management practices which have resulted 
in a reduction in general maintenance and dry rot service orders. The favorable variance 
was partially offset by more hours required for touch-up paint programs and in plumbing 
due to more service calls than anticipated.  

Agenda Item # 14a(1)
Page 7 of 9



Statement of Revenues & Expenses - Preliminary 
Variance Explanations as of November 30, 2019 

Materials and Supplies – $156K Line 12 
Favorable variance resulted in direct materials for certain programs: carpentry work for 
building structure repair began in June; garden villa breezeway program began in August; 
and fewer materials required in irrigation and grounds maintenance. The variance was 
partially offset by more water heater replacements, which are funded in Chargeable 
Services, line 4 above.  

Legal Fees – ($308K) Line 14  
Unfavorable variance resulted from more legal expenses than budgeted. 

Outside Services – $1,790K Line 18 
Favorable variance is due to:   

 Exterior Lighting – $692K
The project consists of purchasing the Southern California Edison street
infrastructure, retrofitting existing lighting fixtures to more efficient LED technology,
and performing the operations and maintenance of the asset for three years. The
first pilot program to choose lighting fixtures was completed in March and with
feedback gathered from the community, a second pilot program was completed in
December 2019. Third M&C Committee voted unanimously in December to
recommend the board authorize the purchase and installation of the chosen light
fixtures for conversion on 759 street light poles; expenses will be incurred in 2020.

 Paving – $539K
Asphalt Paving Program began in August and completed in November on budget;
final payments will be reflected in December.

 Landscape Modification – $432K
Favorable variance due to timing of work: Slope Renovation began in July and was
completed by year end.  Final payments were recorded in December.  Slope
Maintenance and Landscape Modification programs began in November
(subsequent to renovation work) and were 33% and 18% complete respectively by
year end, leading to a favorable variance.

 Building Structures Replacement – $418K
2019 Dry rot work began in June and was completed by year end. The original
scope of work was comprised of 10 buildings and 57 balconies. However, the scope
was reduced to 8 buildings due to more dry rot damage than anticipated and an
additional non-planned building needing immediate repair. Only 2 buildings
remained as of the reporting period, but were completed in December. The year will
end with a favorable variance to budget due to less contingency building structure
replacement needed than anticipated.

Agenda Item # 14a(1)
Page 8 of 9



Statement of Revenues & Expenses - Preliminary 
Variance Explanations as of November 30, 2019 

Offset: 

 Roof Replacements – ($223K)
This program is dedicated to address the maintenance and replacement of roofs.
Due to heavy rainfall received in the beginning of the year, emergency roof repair
requests for rain leaks were higher than budgeted.

 Moisture Intrusion Rain Leaks – ($216K)
Heavy rainfalls in the beginning of the year drove the project actuals to exceed
annual budget as of November, and will continue to cause a further unfavorable
variance through year end.

Agenda Item # 14a(1)
Page 9 of 9



this page intentionally left blank



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
REPORT OF THE REGULAR OPEN SESSION 

Tuesday, January 7, 2020 – 1:30 p.m. 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room, 24351 El Toro Road 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Jon Pearlstone – Chair, Steve Parsons, Annie McCary, Lynn Jarrett, 
John Frankel, Cush Bhada, Robert Mutchnick, Ralph Engdahl, Craig 
Wayne, Advisor: Wei-Ming Tao 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Reza Karimi, Advisor: John Hess 

STAFF PRESENT: Betty Parker, Steve Hormuth, Christopher Swanson 

Call to Order 
Director Jon Pearlstone, Treasurer, chaired the meeting and called it to order at 1:32 p.m. 

Approval of Meeting Agenda 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the agenda as presented. 

Approval of Meeting Report for December 3, 2019 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the committee report as presented. 

Department Head Update 
Betty Parker, Chief Financial Officer, provided updates on the 2020 Budget, Insurance and 
Investments. Director Pearlstone requested that the Request for Proposal for a property 
appraisal include an actuarial analysis of recommended insurance coverage. Advisor Tao 
requested additional information on the impact of the 8.5% Funding Rehabilitation Plan for 
Union retirement.   

Preliminary Financial Statements dated November 30, 2019 
The committee reviewed financials and questions were addressed.  The committee requested a 
more detailed compensation variance report at the next finance committee meeting.  

Investment Update 
A handout was provided from SageView regarding the targeted allocations of investments 
between seven different funds. Semi-annual portfolio reviews will be scheduled.  

Transfer of Funds to Discretionary Investments  
The committee reviewed a staff report regarding the transfer of funds to discretionary 
investments, representing cash that is not needed for near-term operations. 

Agenda Item #14a(2)
Page 1 of 2



Report of Third Finance Committee Open Meeting 
January 7, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

Director Bhada made a motion and was seconded by Director Mutchnick to transfer 
$10,000,000 to the discretionary investment account held by Fidelity Investments. Discussion 
ensued. 

Director Parsons made a motion and was seconded by Director Bhada to amend the original 
motion from $10,000,000 to $8,000,000, consistent with staff’s recommendation. Discussion 
ensued and both the amendment and the motion passed unanimously.  

Staff was directed to follow up with mid-year cash projections based to determine if any further 
funds are available for the discretionary account. 

Committee Member Comments 
Director Pearlstone encouraged committee member participation and discussion.  

Advisor Tao provided compliments about the continuous improvements in financial reporting.  

Future Agenda Items 
Chargeable Services Report – Q4 (February) 
Overtime/Temp Help/ Turnover – Q4 (February) 
Solar System Update – Q4 (February) 

Date of Next Meeting 
Tuesday, February 4, 2020 at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room. 

Recess to Closed Session 
The meeting recessed at 2:37 p.m. 

_________________________________ 
Jon Pearlstone, Chair 

Agenda Item #14a(2)
Page 2 of 2

swansoc
Draft



4959 $14,821,540 $308,782$314,242January $18,540,250

5047 $18,660,142 $373,203$314,256February $14,770,050

8766 $28,065,799 $359,818$355,238March $23,445,712

7961 $27,694,226 $364,398$328,550April $20,041,551

7478 $24,187,990 $350,551$307,379May $23,975,536

8372 $28,097,538 $374,634$295,810June $21,298,290

6383 $19,434,100 $329,392$327,356July $27,170,573

8978 $28,612,100 $340,620$333,731August $26,031,000

4460 $17,185,192 $409,171$332,868September $19,972,080

6686 $22,702,400 $366,168$309,864October $26,648,300

5952 $17,330,500 $320,935$358,718November $18,653,350

4779 $17,262,399 $383,609$348,046December $27,495,600

TOTAL 790.00 $264,053,926

MON AVG 65.00 $22,004,494 $356,773

821.00

68.00 $22,336,858

$268,042,292

$327,171

* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

Monthly Resale Report

REPORT PERIOD

December, 2019All MutualsCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE

MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 101/06/2020

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 1 of 8

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 1 of 8



Resales - 5 Year Comparison

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Month

0

12

24

36

48

60

72

84

96

108

120

N
o
.O
f 
U
n
it
s

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Resales 5-Yr Comparison - All Mutuals Page 1 01/06/2020 10:47

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 2 of 8

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 2 of 8



2532 $8,807,150 $352,286$390,066January $12,482,100

2925 $12,600,892 $434,514$408,320February $10,208,000

3842 $16,909,199 $444,979$396,184March $16,639,712

4625 $18,869,626 $410,209$417,420April $10,435,500

3837 $15,452,990 $406,658$439,812May $16,273,033

3725 $16,981,138 $458,950$411,600June $10,290,000

2440 $9,892,800 $412,200$433,184July $17,327,373

4038 $17,327,000 $433,175$420,918August $15,994,900

2433 $12,552,692 $523,029$383,127September $12,643,180

3441 $14,146,300 $416,068$393,729October $16,142,900

2930 $10,947,500 $377,500$450,698November $13,520,950

2839 $13,693,599 $489,057$469,738December $18,319,800

TOTAL 392.00 $168,180,886

MON AVG 32.00 $14,015,074 $429,885

407.00

33.00 $14,189,787

$170,277,448

$417,900

% CHANGE -
YTD

3.8% 1.2% -2.8%

% Change calculated (ThisYear - LastYear)/LastYear

* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

Monthly Resale Report

REPORT PERIOD

December, 2019ThirdCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE

MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 101/06/2020

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 3 of 8

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 3 of 8



Resales - 5 Year Comparison

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Month

0

7

14

21

28

35

42

49

56

63

70

N
o
.O
f 
U
n
it
s

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Resales 5-Yr Comparison - Third Laguna Hills Mutual Page 1 01/06/2020 10:39

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 4 of 8

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 4 of 8



12/23/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Granite Escrow967-C 3 HomeSmart EvergreenCastilla$198,000

12/18/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.969-2B 3 Century 21 RainbowVilla Capri$283,000

12/17/2019 Laguna Woods Village Realty Granite Escrow2119-A 3 Eonian GroupMonterey$190,000

12/26/2019 Century 21 Masters Corner Escrow Inc.2287-O 3 Keller Williams Realty IrvineCastilla$249,800

12/26/2019 Village Real Estate Services Granite Escrow2305-A 3 Coldwell BankerValencia$485,000

12/10/2019 Century 21 Award Corner Escrow Inc.2316-B 3 Douglas Elliman Real EstateCasa 
Contenta

$270,000

12/11/2019 HomeSmart Evergreen Escrow Options Group2319-B 3 HomeSmart EvergreenCasa Linda$260,000

12/27/2019 Realty One Group West Glen Oaks Escrow2372-D 3 Century 21 AstroValencia$430,000

12/17/2019 Dilbeck Real Estate Granite Escrow2385-1D 3 SoCal Life RealtorsGarden Villa$370,000

12/10/2019 ReMax Terrasol Prominent Escrow Services2391-1B 3 ReMax TerrasolGarden Villa$285,000

12/17/2019 Marlene Thompson, Broker Granite Escrow2396-1D 3 Coldwell BankerGarden Villa$400,000

12/19/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 3076-D 3 First Team Real EstateVentura$320,000

12/26/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Corner Escrow Inc.3105-Q 3 H & M Realty GroupCasa Vista$287,000

12/20/2019 HomeSmart Evergreen Escrow Options Group3143-P 3 HomeSmart EvergreenCasa Vista$300,000

12/06/2019 Sotheby's International Realty Cardinal Escrow3211-C 3 Robert Ganem, BrokerLa Reina$532,500

12/23/2019 Laguna View Realty Blue Pacific Escrow 3212-D 3 Coldwell Banker ResidentialLa Reina$649,000

12/17/2019 First Team Real Estate Corner Escrow Inc.3241-1D 3 Century 21 RainbowVilla Puerta$420,000

12/20/2019 Residential Agent Inc. Granite Escrow3242-2B 3 HomeSmart EvergreenVilla Puerta$200,000

12/23/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 3309-N 3 Laguna Premier Realty, IncCasa Vista$328,000

12/20/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 3352-A 3 HomeSmart EvergreenMalaga$559,000

12/02/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Generations Escrow3500-1E 3 Meritage RealtyVilla Nueva$290,000

12/02/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.3510-1A 3 Village Real Estate ServicesVilla Nueva$385,000

12/23/2019 First Team Real Estate Generations Escrow3510-1D 3 RealtyQuestVilla Nueva$305,000

12/02/2019 Balboa Real Estate Blue Pacific Escrow 4002-1C 3 Dorothy YehVilla Nueva$270,000

Third Laguna Hills Mutual

Resales Report

December, 2019

Manor EscrowBuyer RealtorClose Price Model/Style Listing RealtorMutual

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: 1Page 2of01/06/2020

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 5 of 8

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 5 of 8



12/06/2019 Realty Masters Arbor One Escrow4011-3E 3 Century 21 RainbowEl Mirador$630,000

12/17/2019 Wave Crest Financial Granite Escrow4011-3C 3 Surterre Properties, Inc.El Mirador$450,000

12/17/2019 Pacific Sotheby's International Corner Escrow Inc.4026-2D 3 Pacific Sotheby's InternationalVilla Nueva$250,000

12/19/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.5197 3 Re/Max MastersVilla Paraisa$885,000

12/20/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Granite Escrow5268 3 Century 21 RainbowVilla Paraisa$770,000

12/17/2019 Seven Gables Real Estate Corner Escrow Inc.5270 3 Curb RealtyVilla Paraisa$1,015,000

12/27/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Granite Escrow5304 3 Coldwell Banker ResidentialVilla Paraisa$775,000

12/20/2019 First Team Real Estate Granite Escrow5360-P 3 First Team Real EstateLa Brisa$255,000

12/02/2019 Berkshire Hathaway Corner Escrow Inc.5394-B 3 HomeSmart EvergreenCasa Rosa$525,000

12/30/2019 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.5474-A 3 Century 21 RainbowCabrillo$729,000

12/06/2019 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 5508-B 3 Presidential Real EstateCasa Rosa$600,000

12/13/2019 New Star Realty & Investment Team Escrow, Inc.5511-2E 3 New Star Realty & InvestmentEl Mirador$483,000

12/31/2019 HomeSmart Evergreen Granite Escrow5515-3A 3 New Star Realty & InvestmentEl Mirador$566,500

12/23/2019 Jonathan Whitesides, Broker Granite Escrow5560-A 3 Redpoint RealtyCasa Lorenzo$1,020,000

12/12/2019 HomeSmart Evergreen Escrow Options Group5569-B 3 Century 21 AstroCasa Siena$1,100,000

Total Resale Price:

Number of Resales:

Average Resale Price: $469,738

39

$18,319,800

Median Resale Price: $400,000

Third Laguna Hills Mutual

Resales Report

December, 2019

Manor EscrowBuyer RealtorClose Price Model/Style Listing RealtorMutual

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: 2Page 2of01/06/2020

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 6 of 8

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 6 of 8



PREPARED BY MUTUAL

Community Services Department Third December 2019

Period Month 2019 2018 2017 2016 2019 2018 2017 2016 2019 2018 2017 2016

1 January 32 25 38 30 $12,482,100 $8,807,150 $14,513,062 $10,663,350 $390,066 $352,286 $381,923 $355,445

2 February 25 29 28 31 $10,208,000 $12,600,892 $9,887,500 $11,354,000 $408,320 $434,514 $353,125 $366,258

3 March 42 38 42 44 $16,639,712 $16,909,199 $15,185,800 $14,408,861 $396,184 $444,979 $361,567 $327,474

4 April 25 46 45 49 $10,435,500 $18,869,626 $18,847,150 $18,170,528 $417,420 $410,209 $418,826 $370,827

5 May 37 38 44 44 $16,273,033 $15,452,990 $18,157,951 $13,703,900 $439,812 $406,658 $412,681 $311,452

6 June 25 37 49 42 $10,290,000 $16,981,138 $21,011,450 $12,838,300 $411,600 $458,950 $428,805 $305,674

7 July 40 24 36 46 $17,327,373 $9,892,800 $13,526,020 $16,112,500 $433,184 $412,200 $375,723 $350,272
8 August 38 40 47 56 $15,994,900 $17,327,000 $17,967,189 $21,085,200 $420,918 $433,175 $382,281 $376,521
9 September 33 24 46 41 $12,643,180 $12,552,692 $16,020,038 $12,651,500 $383,127 $523,029 $356,001 $308,573

10 October 41 34 46 40 $16,142,900 $14,146,300 $18,804,700 $13,386,500 $393,729 $416,068 $408,798 $334,663
11 November 30 28 49 43 $13,520,950 $10,675,000 $19,847,200 $16,453,200 $450,698 $381,250 $405,045 $382,633
12 December 39 28 38 36 $18,319,800 $13,693,599 $18,509,275 $12,528,800 $469,738 $489,057 $487,086 $348,022

TOTAL 407 391 508 502 $170,277,448 $167,908,386 $202,277,335 $173,356,639

MON AVG 33.9 32.6 42.3 41.8 $14,189,787 $13,992,366 $16,856,445 $14,446,387 $417,900 $430,198 $397,655 $344,818

% CHANGE‐YTD 4.1% ‐23.0% 1.2% 1.4% 1.4% ‐17.0% 16.7% 8.8% ‐2.9% 8.2% 15.3% 7.2%

% Change calculated (This Year ‐ Last Year)/Last Year

Percent calculation only includes YTD figures in black. 

Monthly Resale Report

TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$NUMBER OF RESALES AVG RESALE PRICE 

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 7 of 8

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 7 of 8



New Monthly Transactions

MONTH 3 Months 6 Months 12 Months 12+Months Leases Renewals Extensions

January 17 38 374 1280 1709 61 41 97 0
February 13 32 380 1279 1704 62 56 110 3
March 12 27 384 1267 1690 96 67 137 3
April 10 16 369 1277 1672 89 72 154 3
May 12 22 351 1279 1664 64 74 151 4
June 14 27 356 1291 1688 72 66 107 3
July 15 29 371 1269 1684 82 83 109 0
August 10 29 390 1276 1705 58 59 99 0
September 17 21 386 1279 1703 70 40 88 1
October 9 18 383 1246 1656 55 48 135 2
November 13 18 390 1260 1681 44 50 96 1
December 12 32 400 1267 1711 73 48 86 3

Monthly 
Average 12.8 25.8 377.8 1272.5 1688.9 Dec 1664.7 68.8 58.7 114.1 1.9

Percentage 
Leased 1711 / 6102 = 28%

Total 
Expirations

MONTHLY LEASING REPORT
Report Period: 
December-2019

LEASES IN EFFECT Total this 
year

Total last 
year

1712

1651
1644
1656
1625
1662
1673
1678
1667
1690
1705

1613

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 8 of 8

Agenda Item # 14a(3) 
Page 8 of 8



Agenda Item # 14b 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 14b 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 14b 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 14b 
Page 4 of 4



 
 OPEN MEETING 

 
 

REPORT OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL 
MAINTENANCE AND CONSTRUCTION COMMITTEE 

 
Monday, January 6, 2020 – 1:30 PM  

 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room   

24351 El Toro Road 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Cush Bhada – Chair, Steve Parsons, John Frankel, Jon 

Pearlstone, Craig Wayne 
  
MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Ernesto Munoz – Staff Officer, Laurie Chavarria  
 
1. Call to Order/Establish a Quorum 
 

Chair Bhada called the meeting to order at 1:35 PM and stated that the meeting is being 
held pursuant to notice duly given and established that a quorum of the Committee was 
present.   
 

2. Acknowledgement of Media 
 
The media was not present.  
 

3. Approval of the Agenda 
 
Chair Bhada postponed the discussion of Item #13 until the next meeting on March 2, 
2020.  The agenda was approved as amended.  
 

4. Approval of Meeting Report for November 4, 2019 
 
The meeting report from November 4, 2019 was approved as written. 
 
5. Chair's Remarks 
 
Chair Bhada remarked on the Street Light LED Conversion project; and the percentage of 
the 2019 programs that are complete. 
 
6. Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 

Agenda Item # 14d 
Page 1 of 3



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
January 6, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 Ed McGill (2390-2C) commented that he was happy about the major improvements in 

GV Buildings; and the water that leaks from the 1st floor breezeway into the garage. 
 Randy Scott (5372-1G) commented on the need for a permanent ramp at the main 

entrance of 3244; and possible VA funding for ramps. 
 Patricia Lewis (2393-3C/2390-2C) commented on the puddles of water that are in the 

garage of building 2390. 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz and various Committee members replied to the Member 
Comments.   
 
7. Department Head Update 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz had no update.  

 
Consent: 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted
by the Committee by one motion.  In the event that an item is removed from the Consent
Calendar by members of the Committee, such item(s) shall be the subject of further
discussion and action by the Committee. 
 
By consensus, all items on the Consent Calendar were approved.   
 
8. Maintenance Expenditures and Variance Explanations 
9.      Project Log 
 
Reports: 

 
10. Review of TEC’s Energy Priority Work Plan and Deliverables 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz summarized the report and introduced a representative from 
The Energy Coalition. 
 
The TEC representative presented the deliverables from Task 1 of the energy priority work
plan. No further direction was provided to the energy consultant.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding expected future loads; electrical infrastructure upgrades to 
handle the current load; independent EV charging stations; and parking garage circuits.   
 
By consensus, staff was directed to bring back a report with an analysis for what it would 
take to provide independent EV charging stations throughout the Mutual, in order to 
reduce the current load on the existing infrastructure.  
 
11. Building & Carport Lighting Timers 

 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz summarized the report and answered questions from the
Committee. 

Agenda Item # 14d 
Page 2 of 3



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
January 6, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the useful life of the equipment. 
 
12. Dryer Timer Reset Costs 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Committee. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding projected revenue; number of expected loads; the amount of 
subsidized laundry costs; and time of use programming for dryers. 
 
By consensus staff was directed to bring back a report for discussion when there has been 
a full year of revenue collected. 
 
13. Painting of Building 2129 
 
This item was postponed until March 2, 2020. 
 

Items for Future Agendas: 
 

 Programs Report (March, July, November) 
 Painting of Building 2129 (March) 
 Dryer Timer Reset Costs (May) 
 EV Charging in GV Garages 
 
Concluding Business: 
 

Committee Member Comments 
 
 There were no Committee Member Comments 

 
Date of Next Meeting – March 2, 2020 
 
Adjournment – The meeting was adjourned at 3:04 PM.  
 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Cush Bhada, Chair  

 
 
 
 

DRAFT 

Agenda Item # 14d 
Page 3 of 3



this page intentionally left blank



 
OPEN MEETING 

 
 

MEETING REPORT OF THE THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL  
PARKING AND GOLF CART TASK FORCE  

 
Monday, January 6, 2020 – 9:30 A.M. 

Laguna Woods Village Community Center – Sycamore Room 
24351 El Toro Road 

 
NOTICE and AGENDA 

 

This Meeting May be Recorded 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Steve Parsons – Chair, John Frankel, Ralph Engdahl, 
Lynn Jarrett 

  
MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Cush Bhada, John Luebbe, Jeanne Zimmerman 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Ernesto Munoz – Staff Officer, Laurie Chavarria  
 
1. Call to Order/Establish a Quorum 
 
Chair Parsons called the meeting to order at 9: 30 AM and stated that the meeting is being 
held pursuant to notice duly given and established that a quorum of the Task Force was 
present.   
 
2. Acknowledgement of the Media 
 
No media were present. 
 
3. Approval of the Agenda 
 
The agenda was approved as written.  
 
4. Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There were no member comments. 
 
5. Chairman Remarks 
 
Chair Parsons remarked that he asked resident Jeanne Zimmerman to attend this meeting 
and speak about parking concerns at her building. 
 

Agenda Item # 14d(1) 
Page 1 of 3



 
6. Department Head Update 

 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz provided an update on the golf cart parking spaces that were 
added to CDS 216 in 2019. He suggested that the budget allocated for 2020 remain 
focused CDS 216.  Staff will gather a list of possible golf cart parking locations and bring 
back a proposal for the Task Force to review. The Task Force will then make a 
recommendation to the M&C Committee. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding how many golf cart parking spaces can be created this year; 
and the traffic concerns and blind corners in CDS 326.   
 
Chair Parsons suggested that the Task Force work on a plan to add additional vehicle 
parking to the wedding cake area with the 2021 budget. 
 
7. Unfinished Business 

 
a) None 

 
8. New Business – Oral Discussions 
 

a) Sidewalk Parking 
 
Discussion ensued about parking on flat sidewalks in the wedding cake area; and if 
the parking policy should be revised to mandate that garages and carports be used 
for cars, not storage. 
 

b) ADA Accommodations 
 
Chair Parsons talked about a legal update regarding ADA accommodations, which 
will be provided to the Board on 1/7/20.  Discussion ensued regarding curb cuts, 
ramp requests, slopes, and constructive notice. 
 

c) Yellow Stripe for Temporary Parking 
 
Lessee Jeanne Zimmerman of Manor 3278-O requests that a yellow stripe be painted 
on the sidewalk directly adjacent to her carport space to designate temporary 
parking.  By consensus staff was directed to contact Security to see if temporary 
parking can be enforced if the yellow stripe is painted on the sidewalk. If it can, staff 
is authorized to paint the sidewalk yellow in this location. 
 

d) Wedding Cake Priorities 
Discussion ensued regarding priority areas for additional golf cart parking in the 
wedding cake area.  The topics that the Task Force wants to focus on are: narrow 
streets; more vehicles parking in the area after 5pm; very few golf cart spaces; 
oversized vehicles; and no dedicated parking for caregivers.  

 

Agenda Item # 14d(1) 
Page 2 of 3



Agenda Item # 14d(1) 
Page 3 of 3



this page intentionally left blank



 
OPEN MEETING 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL 

LANDSCAPE COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, January 2, 2020 – 9:30 a.m. 
 Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room 

24351 El Toro Road 

REPORT 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair - Lynn Jarrett, Annie McCary, Cush Bhada, 
Ralph Engdahl, Jon Pearlstone 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT:  Reza Karimi, Advisor Cindy Baker 

OTHERS PRESENT:  

ADVISORS PRESENT: 

STAFF PRESENT: Kurt Wiemann, Eve Morton 

1. Call to Order  

 Chair Jarrett called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.    

2. Acknowledgement of Media  

 No media was present. 

3. Approval of the Agenda 

Director Bhada made a motion to approve the agenda. The motion passed with a 
unanimous vote.  

4. Approval of December 5, 2019 Report  

Director McCary moved to approve the Report. Director Bhada seconded. The 
motion passed with a unanimous vote.  

5. Committee Chair Remarks  

Chair Jarrett welcomed everyone in attendance.  She is happy with what this 
committee has accomplished for 2020, including approving the tree trimming 
contract and the slope maintenance contract. 

 

Agenda Item # 14e 
Page 1 of 5



Third Landscape Committee  
January 2, 2020 
Page 2 

6. Member Comments

Maxine Bassett (5276) Crews only came out two times all year. At end of
December, they came out to trim the weeds and there was a metal rod laying in her
yard that she had to remove herself. At corner of Pina and Del Sol, the weeds
haven’t been done and they are two feet tall.  In October and November, staff
repaired her roof but ruined some bushes in the process.  They need to be
replaced.  She called Resident Services and a green truck came out to pick up two
bushes she put into her trash can for pickup on Friday but they didn’t take them.

Annette Sabol-Soule (3428-C) Behind her building, it looks like tinder for fire.
Please look at that.  She would like the Third Board to trim the weeds throughout
the Village.  Please increase weed trims to every other month, not just four times a
year.  We are doing our own weeding. Let’s spend more money getting rid of the
weeds. In front of 3427, it is always wet.  Please have someone look at that.

Doug Gibson (5289) He put in a formal request to get weeding done.  Gate 11, area
is looking good now.  But it took three months to get it done.  Can we keep it
looking good? 5208 and 5151 had 30-foot trees taken out.  Stump is there.  5242
also had tree taken out three years ago and landscaping there doesn’t look good.

Susan Smallwood (3456-B) The irrigation sprinklers show above ground. You can
see them on the slopes and the flat ground.  Is there a plan to hide those?  The
rebar to keep sprinklers up is sticking out of the ground.  Also, are we going to go
back to mulching flower beds?

Nancy Brown (3337-1G) The weeding is a considerable issue.  She is on a slope so
weeds come up the slope and into her flower beds.  Is there a weeding schedule
somewhere?  Nestor told her they would be weeding this month.  I commend the
committee for making clubhouse areas look very nice.  I would like the same care
for our manors.  Our dog and the neighbor’s dog got sick with intestinal issues.
Both are on ground floor.

7. Response to Member Comments

Mr. Wiemann responded to Member Comments:

 This month all of our crews are doing weeding and mulching only.

 We just signed two contracts so slopes and tree trimming will get done this
year.

 The dead wood on slopes is what we did for OCFA.  We need that to stay
there now for slope stabilization. We will take those out in the spring.

 We are hoping to be completely staffed by end of February.

 We will be having a herbicide spray tech on each landscaping crew to keep
up with the weeds.

Agenda Item # 14e
Page 2 of 5



Third Landscape Committee  
January 2, 2020 
Page 3 

 All maintenance schedules are on website and are updated every two
weeks.

 Irrigation above ground is for shrubs.  We will put mulch over the white piping
showing above ground.

 We are getting a new tub grinder at the end of February.

Chair Jarrett reported that the Third Board has revised the Landscape Manual and 
it will be on the website on Monday.   

Director Bhada wished everyone a Happy New Year.  He reported that Mr. 
Wiemann has done a great job this year and he has been promoted to a Director. 

8. Department Head Update

None.

Consent Calendar:  

None. 

Reports:  

9. Project Log

Mr. Wiemann reviewed the projects with the committee.

Chair Jarrett thanked Director Pearlstone for keeping the Board within budget.

10. Tree Work Status Report

Mr. Wiemann reviewed this report with the committee.

Items for Discussion and Consideration: 

11. Discuss and Approve Additional Landscape Modernization Areas

Eileen Lazar asked how dog tolerant these areas will be.  Mr. Wiemann reported
they will be dog friendly.  Will staff keep the areas weeded?  Mr. Wiemann reported
that new projects are on a bi-weekly schedule initially to keep it looking nice.

Director Pearlstone stated that the committee has asked Mr. Wiemann many
questions about these projects and asked him to get it done right.  Director
Pearlstone asked the Members to look at the Gate 14 pilot project.  Staff and this
committee are working out kinks and won’t move forward until we know that pilot is
a success.  We will leave it up to Mr. Wiemann on timing of these additional
projects.  The ROI for these projects is excellent.  There are some rebate
possibilities.

Agenda Item # 14e
Page 3 of 5



Third Landscape Committee  
January 2, 2020  
Page 4 
 

Mr. Wiemann is recommending doing both of these new projects at the same time.  
We are in design phase right now.   

Director Bhada feels areas will look better and we will have water savings. 

John Banks (5090) He looked at Gate 14 area.  He stated that the areas that aren’t 
easy to maintain should also be looked at for these projects.  Chair Jarrett let him 
know that big turf areas are used to save on watering that area. 

Mr. Wiemann said staff will be looking at smaller, hard to maintain areas next. 

Barbara Banks is concerned about project proposed for Gate 11.   A new person 
just moved in by the proposed area.  Will they be told about this?  Mr. Wiemann 
stated that this is common area. Perhaps a grass buffer could be added, like at 
Gate 14. 

Director Pearlstone made a motion to target these two proposed areas for the next 
phase of landscape modernization.  Director McCary seconded.  The committee 
was in unanimous support. 

12. Tree Removal Request: 3086-C Via Serena N.  (Graham) – One Shamel Ash  

Director Bhada made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation and remove the 
tree. The committee was in unanimous support. 

Items for Future Agendas: 
None. 

 

Concluding Business 

13. Committee Member Comments 

Director McCary wished a happy new year to everyone.  She thanked the Members 
in attendance for coming out today to give their feedback. 

Director Pearlstone wished a happy new year to everyone. Gate 11 Members, this 
modernization project is an opportunity.  Provide us with a priority list for projects 
you would like us to consider at Gate 11. 

Chair Jarrett stated that the committee will have a meeting with Gate 11 group.  
She will contact Eileen Lazar. 

Chair Jarrett thanked everyone for coming to the meeting and giving their input. 

She stated that Mr. Wiemann has been a wonderful addition to the Landscaping 
Staff.   

Mr. Wiemann said he is working with his supervisors and a lot should get done this 
year being fully staffed.  We will be replanting dead plants and will have a dedicated 
crew for doing that.  They will fill in any bare spots in the Village.  We are training 

Agenda Item # 14e 
Page 4 of 5



Third Landscape Committee  
January 2, 2020 
Page 5 

new spray techs which will help with the weeds.  Also growth regulators are used to 
slow down weed growth. 

14. Date of Next Meeting – February 6, 2020

15. Adjournment at 10:28 a.m.

_________DRAFT___________ 

Lynn Jarrett, Chair 
      Kurt Wiemann, Staff Officer 

Eve Morton, Landscape Operations Coordinator – 268-2565 

Agenda Item # 14e
Page 5 of 5



this page intentionally left blank



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
REPORT OF THE REGULAR OPEN SESSION 

Wednesday, December 18, 2019 – 1:30 p.m. 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room, 24351 El Toro Road 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Annette Soule, Chair; Bunny Carpenter (for English), Judith 
Troutman, Robert Mutchnick, Jon Pearlstone, Juanita Skillman (for 
Addington), Alfred Amado 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Pat English, Sue Margolis, Elsie Addington 

STAFF PRESENT: Betty Parker, Steve Hormuth, Christopher Swanson, Tim Moy 

OTHERS: GRF – Joe Fitzekam, Egan Garthoffner, Yvonne Horton, 
THIRD – Steve Parsons  
VMS – Diane Phelps, Dick Rader 

Call to Order 
Director Soule chaired the meeting and called it to order at 1:32 p.m. 

Approval of Meeting Agenda 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the agenda as presented. 

Approval of the Regular Meeting Report of October 23, 2019 
A motion was made and carried by a vote of 6-0-1 (Director Mutchnick abstained) to approve 
the report as presented. 

Chair Remarks 
Director Soule welcomed the new GRF board members and officers.  

Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 
Patricia Brady (466-B) commented on the need for an accessibility ramp at her carport. The 
committee requested she bring this topic up at the next ACSC on January 16, 2020.  

SueEllen Zima (823-D) commented on the Alternative Revenue Cost Sharing subcommittee. 

Georgeann Albano (40-S) commented on the 2020 annual assessment letter. 

Department Head Update 
Betty Parker, CFO, informed the committee that 2020 Assessment Coupon Books were mailed 
to residents who have not signed up for EZ Pay (auto payment service).  Additionally, the 2020 
Greenbooks have been placed in the mailboxes of all board members.  A PDF file of the 
Greenbook is available to residents on the website or in Central Services with a copy fee. 

Agenda Item # 15a
Page 1 of 2



Report of GRF Finance Committee Regular Open Meeting 
December 18, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Review Preliminary Financial Statements dated November 30, 2019 
The committee reviewed and commented on the financial statements dated November 30, 
2019, issued under separate cover, and questions were addressed. The committee requested 
additional information for the following:  proforma statement for Broadband, PAC expenditures, 
missed meal penalties, and security stand-by fees.   
 
Ms. Parker provided an update on the investment transition from Merrill Lynch to SageView, 
noting that all holdings with BlackRock had been liquidated and reinvested with target 
allocations that include Fidelity and Vanguard index funds for U.S. treasuries, U.S. mortgaged 
backed securities, and investment grade corporate bonds.  A handout was provided showing 
current positions.  The committee requested a reconciliation of amounts sold vs. reinvested. 
 
Insurance Program Update 
The committee reviewed a staff report on the 2020 insurance renewal and agreed with the 
proposed timeline.  
 
2020 GRF Finance Meeting Dates 
The committee reviewed the 2020 GRF Finance Meeting Schedule, which will be revised to 
reflect the December meeting scheduled for December 16, 2020.  
 
Gate 11 Security Improvement Funding 
The committee reviewed a staff report on supplemental funding for Gate 11 Security 
Improvements. Tim Moy, Chief of Security, provided additional information on this topic and 
addressed questions. A motion was made and carried unanimously to recommend the board 
approve supplemental funding at their next open board meeting.  
 
Future Agenda Items 

- GRF Finance Committee Charter 
- Discuss Non-Voting Advisors 

Committee Member Comments 
Director Skillman commented on investments and Gate 11 project approval. Director Pearlstone 
wished everyone happy holidays.  
 
Date of Next Meeting  
Wednesday, February 19, 2020 at 1:30 p.m. 
 
Recess to Closed Session 
The meeting recessed to closed session at 2:55 p.m.  
 
 
 

________________________ 
Annette Soule, Chair 

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 2 of 2

swansoc
Draft



OPEN MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION 
LANDSCAPE COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, December 4, 2019 – 9:30 a.m. 
 Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room 

24351 El Toro Road 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair - Bert Moldow, Annette Sabol Soule for Jim 
Matson, Lynn Jarrett, Manuel Armendariz, Yvonne Horton, Ralph Engdahl for Reza 
Karimi, Neda Ardani for Andre Torng 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT: Andre Torng, Reza Karimi, Jim Matson 

OTHERS PRESENT: Bunny Carpenter, Juanita Skillman, John Frankel 

ADVISORS PRESENT: None. 

STAFF PRESENT: Kurt Wiemann, Eve Morton  

REPORT 

1. Call to Order

Chair Moldow called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

2. Acknowledgement of Media

No press was present.

3. Approval of  the Agenda

Director Armendariz made a motion to approve the agenda. Director Jarrett
seconded. The committee was in unanimous support.

4. Approval of Meeting Report of August 14, 2019

Director Armendariz made a motion to approve the Meeting Report. Director Jarrett
seconded. The committee was in unanimous support.

5. Committee Chair Remarks

Chair Moldow stated that Landscape staff is down 10 people or 11 percent. Mr.
Wiemann is doing his best to find people.  Mr. Wiemann did a fantastic job on the
creek.  There must have been 30 ducks enjoying themselves in the water and prior
to work there were none.

Agenda Item # 15c
Page 1 of 4



GRF Landscape Committee Meeting 
December 4, 2019  
Page 2 
 
6. Member Comments - (Items Not on the Agenda)  

Barbara Mescon(5557-A)  The lawns are terrible.  Upkeep of our community is 
terrible.  I had people visiting and it looks awful.  If we have a fire, it will spread 
through the whole area.  Pine needles haven’t been swept up.   She has called the 
CEO  and he said they will be trimming the trees in January and February.   

Elizabeth Morris (581-O)  She wanted to thank Mr. Wiemann for the creek and the 
park.  They look fantastic.  Ducks are everwhere and also a great blue heron.  He 
visited twice in one week and she hasn’t seen him in three years.  A big egret was 
there too.  Dead bushes by Sevilla were finally removed. Thank you. 

Sharon O’Neil ( 581-P)  Thanks also for work at the creek.  Great to see wildlife. 

Roberta Berk (933-B)  Tree pruners cut down palm trees and stumps are in an 
open area and she feels it will be a liability.  She feels there is not enough 
oversight.  They mulched whole area but not down below. Routine things are not 
being handled.  Why can’t they use the blowers on the rocks; used to be covered 
with water but now everything falls on them.   

Walt Herd (579-B)  The creek is stunning compared to what it used to be.  Thank 
you.  The weeds/reeds are popping up again. Can someone cut them so they don’t 
get out of control? Would be simple task at this point.  Please clean up the pathway.  
A lot of mud and sand from the rain.  A lot of leftover twigs and branches in the 
grass.  Please remove those. 

7. Response to Member Comments 

Director Armendariz stated people should come to this meetings or put in a service 
request for any needs.  Mr. Wiemann will be using an outside vendor to help with 
some of the work. 

Director Engdahl said thank you for the favorable comments. 

Director Jarrett thanked everyone for coming. 

Chair Moldow is appreciative of people coming here today to make good comments 
about the creek.  This committee is responsible only for GRF areas. 

Response to 5577-A -  Staff is currently renovating turf and aerating it all.  Staff will 
fertilize and overseed in the spring.  We will be doing this in United in the Spring.  
Turf will not look good for about six months during this process. 

All trees in Third will be trimmed.  We are in the process of approving those 
contracts.  Slope contracts for all Mutuals are being worked on also. 

Mr. Wiemann let Roberta Berk know that a separate crew removes the stumps and 
they will be getting to the ones you mentioned. 

8. Department Head Update 

None. 

 

 Agenda Item # 15c 
Page 2 of 4



GRF Landscape Committee Meeting 
December 4, 2019 
Page 3 

Consent: 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by the Committee by one motion.  In the event that an item is removed from the 
Consent Calendar by members of the Committee, such item(s) shall be the subject of 
further discussion and action by the Committee. 

None. 

Reports:  
None 

Items for Discussion and Consideration: 

9. Discuss the Land Survey of Aliso Creek

Mr. Wiemann reported that the land survey of the creek has been completed.  We
are calculating what belongs to each Mutual at the Creek.  This will effect financials
in 2021.  A new man in January will be in charge of cattails.  We will be clearing
them one more time in January.

Director Armendariz stated the main reason the land survey was done was so we
can know who is in charge of what. Markers clearly delineate.

10. Update on the Creek

Mr. Wiemann has met with Fish and Wildlife and they are happy with creek.  He let
them know we want more open area and they are considering our request.
Upstream of the bridge, he is proposing to open it up and and free it of cattails. We
may may be doing pond turtle habitats and they need open water.

11. Discuss Possibility of Replacing Some Turf Areas with Drought-Tolerant
Plantings

Chair Moldow stated rebates are available for removal of turf.  Are there any plans
for GRF?  Mr. Wiemann reported that no money is budgeted for this.  Rebates are
not available for any reclaimed water areas.

Mr. Wiemann reported that drought tolerant plants are being planted at Gate 14.
The turf at the clubhouses is such a prominent feature so he believes gates are the
place to start.

Mr. Wiemann said he will put together costs.  Director Sabol Soule suggested a
plan for a future budget and to prioritize gates to do in what order.

Chair Moldow asked committee members to look at lawns at the clubhouses to see
if they want to make any changes.

Mr. Wiemann stated that  holding the maintenance at the clubhouses to a higher
standard would be a good place for more money.

Agenda Item # 15c
Page 3 of 4



GRF Landscape Committee Meeting 
December 4, 2019  
Page 4 
 
Items for Future Agendas: 

12. Discuss Cost of Upgrading Landscaping at the Renovated Gates 

Concluding Business: 

13. Committee Member Comments 

Chair Moldow thanked Mr. Wiemann for staying on top of things and for the 
Members who attended this meeting. 

14. Date of Next Meeting – February 12,  2020 

15. Adjournment at 10:10 a.m. 

 

 

__________DRAFT_______ 

Bert Moldow, Chair 

Agenda Item # 15c 
Page 4 of 4



OPEN MEETING 

THE GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION 
REPORT OF PERFORMING ARTS CENTER (PAC) RENOVATION 

AD HOC COMMITTEE  

Thursday, December 12, 2019 – 2:00 P.M. 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Judith Troutman – Chair, Bunny Carpenter, Joe 
Fitzekam, John Frankel - left at 3:35 (in for Cush 
Bhada), Jon Pearlstone, Carl Randazzo, Juanita 
Skillman 

ADVISORS PRESENT: Sharon Molineri 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Cush Bhada; Mutual 50 Representative 

STAFF PRESENT: Ernesto Munoz – Staff Officer, Laurie Chavarria, Guy 
West, Brian Gruner, Jeff Parker 

1. Call to Order

Chair Troutman called the meeting to order at 2:00 P.M. 

2. Acknowledgment of Media

Chair Troutman noted no members of the media were present. 

3. Approval of the Agenda

The agenda was approved as written. 

4. Approval of the Meeting Report for October 17, 2019

The meeting report from October 17, 2019 was approved as written by a vote of 4/2/1. 
Directors Randazzo and Skillman opposed, and Chair Troutman abstained. 

5. Chair’s Remarks

Chair Troutman had no remarks. 

Agenda Item #15d(1)
Page 1 of 3



6. Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda)

• Cash Achrekar (201-E) commented on the ability to have theatre room naming
rights with a generous donation toward this project.

• Beth Perak (3321-C) thanked the various committee members and staff that
have brought the PAC renovation project this far.

7. Department Head Update

Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz had no update. 

REPORTS 

8. Performing Arts Center Engineering Design Update

Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz provided a brief history on the renovation project; spoke 
about the alternative designs; summarized the proposed maintenance upgrades, and 
answered questions from the Committee.  

Discussion ensued regarding ADA requirements; lobby and dining room upgrades; 
contingency funding; construction bid documents; the architect’s construction estimate; 
and possible renovation changes to reduce the overall project cost. 

Ad-Hoc Committee Member Comments on the update: 

• Director Frankel commented on seismic requirements; restroom upgrades; cost
percentage for general conditions and construction support.

• Director Randazzo commented the estimated project costs versus current available
budget; resident approval of increased project costs and the scope of work that will
go out to bid.

• Director Skillman commented on lounge and facilities in the women’s restroom; she
would like to see an alternative cost to remodel the current bathroom without
relocating it.

• Director Carpenter commented on the aesthetics that need to be made to the
restrooms (paint and toilet upgrades); and who will specify the equipment for
audio/visual upgrades.

• Director Pearlstone commented on project priorities and if there were any way to
eliminate some of the maintenance upgrades to bring the project within budget and
menu item pricing on the RFP.

• Director Fitzekam asked about possibly lowering the quality of the equipment to
save costs.

Audience Member Comments on the update: 

• Maxine McIntosh (68-C) commented on contingency funding and construction
documents.

Agenda Item #15d(1) 
Page 2 of 3



Agenda Item #15d(1)
Page 3 of 3



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item #15e 
Page 1 of 5



Agenda Item #15e 
Page 2 of 5



Agenda Item #15e 
Page 3 of 5



Agenda Item #15e 
Page 4 of 5



Ms. Carpenter replied the results should go before the Media and Communications 
Committee. 

Director McCary thanked Broadband and MarComm. 

Director English wished everyone a Merry Christmas. 

Director Perak thanked Mr. Holland and Ms. Paulin for looking forward in messaging, 
saving money and with canceling channels. 

Director Addington thanked the staff and after checking her math stated the Breeze is 
currently costing $37,000 a year. 

Director Skillman wished everyone happy holidays. 

Director Ryna Rothberg wished everyone happy holidays. 

Mr. Holland stated the Breeze costs $38,000 a year. He stated the real estate industry is 
currently depressed in general, to explain the lack of sales. He brought up the gate 
clearance calls total 225,000 annually and consume 3,750 hours of staff time. He will 
work on putting together an analysis of what that costs, 

Ms. Paulin asked Director Skillman if it would be prudent to craft a message to clarify 
why assessments are not going down with the removal of the two channels. 

Chair Soule stated it was a good meeting and thanked everyone. 

11. Date of Next Meeting-Wednesday, January 22, 2019 9:30 a.m., Board Room

12. Adjournment
Meeting was adjourned at 3:31 p.m.

Media and Communications Committee 

Page 5 of 5 

Agenda Item #15e 
Page 5 of 5


	12a - Complete Species Based Tree Trimming Staff report_resolution_schedule.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	12b Internal Dispute Resolution - Endorsement 12-2-19 v1.pdf
	Blank Page

	13a Investment Transfer to Discretionary 2020-01-21 (Combined).pdf
	Staff Report - Investment Transfer to Discretionary 2020-01-21
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
	ATTACHMENT(S)


	Resolution - Investment Transfers to Discretionary 2020-01-21
	Blank Page

	14a1 Treasurer's Report - November 30 2019 (For GMs office).pdf
	Third Treasurer's Report 2019-11 Slides
	Statement of Revenue & Expenses
	Third Variance Report 2019-11 for Board Agenda Packet

	14e Third Landscape Committee Notes 1-2-2020_kw.pdf
	Blank Page

	15a GRF Finance Report 2019-12-18 OPEN (Draft).pdf
	________________________
	Annette Soule, Chair

	15d1 GRF PAC Renovation Ad Hoc Committee Report 12-12-19 (FINAL).pdf
	GRF PAC Renovation Ad Hoc Committee Report 12-12-19 (FINAL).pdf
	OPEN MEETING
	THE GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION

	20191219070056797.pdf

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	14d1 TLHM Parking Task Force Meeting Report 1-6-20.pdf
	TLHM Parking Task Force Meeting Report 1-6-20.pdf
	20200116071338957.pdf

	Blank Page
	11c1 NODA Resolution 01212020.pdf
	Blank Page

	11a1 3510-3G Retain Non-Standard Entry Door Color.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	Staff recommends the Board approve the request to retain the non-standard color on two exterior doors with the conditions in Appendix A.
	BACKGROUND

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	11a2 5165 - Retain Non-Standards Door and Add Stone Veneer.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	BACKGROUND

	Attachment_2 - 5165 - Photos.pdf
	Attachment_2 - 5165 - Photos
	5 x 7 in

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	11a3 5589-A - Enclose Original Plantar.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	BACKGROUND

	Attachment_3 - 5589-A - Photos.pdf
	Attachment_3 - 5589-A - Photos
	5 x 7 in

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	11b1 Updated for 1-21-2020 Board Meeting_Contract Award_Tree Maintenance_Third.pdf
	Blank Page

	11b2 Updated for 1-21-2020 Board Meeting _Contract Award_Slope Maintenance.pdf
	Complete Slope Contract and Slope List _ Third.pdf
	Analysis

	Blank Page

	Blank Page



